
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Planning Commission and Staff Seating 

  

MIKE STRONG 
Director of Community 

Development 

OWEN TUNNELL 
Assistant City Engineer 

KATHARINE BARBA 
Commissioner 

RICK PAUL 
Commissioner 

INGRID RAINEY 
Vice-Chair 

STAN WEILER 
Chair 

HERMINIA RAMIREZ 
Commissioner 

DAO DOAN 
Commissioner 

NATHAN SERRATO 
Commissioner 

KURT WHITMAN 
Senior Deputy City Attorney 

JOANNE TASHER 
Minutes Clerk 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

201 North Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 
VIDEO CONFERENCE 

7 p.m. 
 

April 27, 2021 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 7 p.m. 
 
B. FLAG SALUTE 
 
C. ROLL CALL:  
 
D. MINUTES: 04/13/21  
 
E. SELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Planning Commission on any item of interest 

to the public before or during the Planning Commission's consideration of the item.  If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, 
please fill out a speaker's slip and give it to the Minutes Clerk who will forward it to the Chair. 

 

 
Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting:  any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Planning 
Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division located at 201 N. 
Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

 

 The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services for individuals with disabilities.  Please 
contact the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643 with any requests for reasonable accommodation at least 24 hours prior to the 
meeting. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Planning Commission. For information, call (760) 839-4671.

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders, including N-25-20 and N-29-20: Certain Brown Act requirements for 
the holding of a public meeting have been temporarily suspended and members of the Planning Commission and staff 
will participate in this meeting via teleconference.  In the interest of reducing the spread of COVID-19, members of the 
public are encouraged to submit their agenda and non-agenda comments online at the following link 

https://www.escondido.org/public-comment-form.aspx.  Council Chambers will be closed, no public allowed.    
 
Public Comment: To submit comments in writing, please do so at the following link: https://www.escondido.org/public-
comment-form.aspx.  If you would like to have the comment read out loud at the meeting (not to exceed three minutes), 
please write “Read Out Loud” in the subject line.  All comments received from the public will be made a part of the record 
of the meeting.   The meeting will be available for viewing via public television on Cox Communications Channel 19 and 
AT&T u-verse Channel 99 (Escondido only).  The meeting will also be live streamed online at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/ and click on the graphic showing “live stream - meeting in progress”. 
 
To watch the archived Planning Commission meeting(s) please visit: 
https://escondido.12milesout.com/presentations/boards-and-commissions-and-state-of-the-city-videos 

https://www.escondido.org/public-comment-form.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/public-comment-form.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/public-comment-form.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/
https://escondido.12milesout.com/presentations/boards-and-commissions-and-state-of-the-city-videos


Planning Commission Agenda 
April 27, 2021 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
F. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 Under state law, all items under Written Communications can have no action, and will be referred to 

the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. 
 
 
1. Future Neighborhood Meetings 
 
 
G. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 Under state law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action, and may be referred to the 

staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. 
 
 This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business 

within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 Please try to limit your testimony to three minutes. 
 

 None. 
 

I. CURRENT BUSINESS: 
 
 Note:  Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require either 

public notice or public hearings. Public comments will be limited to a maximum time of three minutes 
per person. 

 
 

1. Public Nuisance Appeal Case No. C 20-4286: 
 

Request:  An appeal of a notice and order to abate a public nuisance requiring the abatement 
of weeds and hazardous vegetation. 
 

Location: 400 James Street (APN: 231-140-2000) 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Deny the appeal and uphold the Building Official’s decision 
 
Commission Action: 
 
 

2. Housing and Community Investment Study 
 
Staff will provide an informational report and status update to the Commission. 

 
 

3. Planning Commission Annual Work Plan 
 
Prepare the Commission’s Annual Work Plan. 

 
 



Planning Commission Agenda 
April 27, 2021 

Page 3 

  

 
 
 
 
 
J. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

Under state law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and may be referred to staff 
for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. 

 
 This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business 

within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
 
K. PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



Agenda Item No.: D 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

 

ACTION MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

ESCONDIDO PLANNING COMMISSION 

VIDEO/VIRTUAL CONFERENCE 

 

April 13, 2021 

 

The meeting of the Escondido Planning Commission was called to order at 7 p.m. 

by Chair Weiler, in the City Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, 

California.  

 

Commissioners present: Stan Weiler, Chair; Ingrid Rainey, Vice-Chair; 

Katharine Barba, Commissioner; Dao Doan, Commissioner; Rick Paul, 

Commissioner; Herminia Ramirez, Commissioner; and Nathan Serrato, 

Commissioner. 

 

Commissioners absent:  None. 

 

Staff present:  Mike Strong, Director of Community Development; Kurt Whitman, 

Senior Deputy City Attorney; Owen Tunnell, Assistant City Engineer; Jay Paul, 

Senior Planner; and Joanne Tasher, Minutes Clerk. 

 

MINUTES:  

 

Moved by Vice-Chair Rainey, with the correction to item G.1 SUB 20-0006 to state 

that the motion for that item was not carried unanimously, and seconded by 

Commissioner Barba to approve the Action Minutes of the March 23, 2021,  

Planning Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously (7-0). Ayes: Barba, 

Doan, Paul, Rainey, Ramirez, Serrato, and Weiler. 

 

 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  Received. 

 

Communication from Laura Hunter, Chair, Sierra Club North County Group 

Conservation Committee, dated April 5, 2021, regarding public communications 

with the Planning Commission, was submitted into the record. 



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Communication from Laura Hunter, dated April 7, 2021, regarding the Escondido 

Community Advisory Group (ECAG) proposal for a Climate Engagement 

Commission, was submitted into the record. 

 

Communication from Laura Hunter, dated April 9, 2021, regarding a Los Angeles 

Times news article about wildfire risk and the halting of a residential development 

project, was submitted into the record. 

 

Letter from Laura Hunter, Chair, Sierra Club North County Group Conservation 

Committee, dated April 12, 2021, regarding a Community Coalition request for 

action in advance of the Harvest Hills project consideration, was submitted into the 

record. 

 

Written Communication for Agenda Item No. G.1, revised Conditions of Approval 

related to Section E.4 “Design/Operation,” General Engineering Condition No. 8, 

and CC&Rs were submitted into the record. 

 

FUTURE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS:  None. 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  Received. 

 

Correspondence from Patricia Borchmann, regarding the Housing and Community 

Investment Study from the March 23, 2021, Planning Commission meeting, was 

read into the record. 

 

Correspondence from Laura Hunter, regarding public communications with the 

Planning Commission, was read into the record. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

 

1. TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN, AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT– SUB 20-0001, PHG 20-0009, and 

ENV 20-0001: 

 

REQUEST: Tentative Subdivision Map, and Master and Precise Development 

Plan for the development of two, four-story buildings (up to approx. 65 feet in 

height) to accommodate up to 120 air-space condominium units with a density of 

approximately 51.5 dwelling units per acre. The design includes a mix of studio, 



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

one-bedroom and two-bedroom units. 179 parking spaces are proposed that 

include a combination of enclosed garages with open tandem parking in front; on-

site covered and uncovered spaces; angled parking along the S. Pine Street 

frontage; and perpendicular spaces along the W. 3rd Avenue frontage. Vacation 

of a portion of W. 3rd Avenue, S. Pine Street and public alley along the project 

frontages is requested.  The proposed Planned Development includes a request 

for an approximately 14% (29 space) reduction in required parking from the 

required 208 spaces; allow a 49 percent reduction in the overall open space 

requirement and payment of in-lieu fees to off-set the reduction; minor 

encroachment into the 2nd Avenue setback to accommodate a screen wall; allow 

additional wall sign area up to 70 square feet; and reduction in covered parking 

spaces.  An Amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan is requested to eliminate 

the ground-floor commercial requirement and permit ground floor residential units.  

All of the existing structures would be demolished.  (The project is located on City-

owned property and will require approval of a Purchase and Sale Agreement, as 

a concurrent discretionary action to be presented at the time the project is 

presented to the City Council.) 

 

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION:  The approximately 2.33-acre site fronts onto 

2nd Avenue, Pine Street, 3rd Avenue and Quince Street.  Centre City Parkway is 

located to the east.  The site is located within the Mercado District of the Downtown 

Specific Planning Area and is comprised of 11 parcels (APNs, 233-032-07-00, 233-

032-08-00, 233-032-10-00, 233-032-11-00, 233-032-12-00, 233-032-13-00, 233-

032-14-00, 233-032-17-00, 233-032-18-00, 233-032-19-00, and 233-032-21-00). 

The reference address is 235 S. Pine Street. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: The Project is categorically exempt pursuant to 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines section 15332 (In-Fill 

Development Projects).  

 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval to City Council 
 

 COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION: 

 

 The Commissioners discussed various elements of the project including parking 

for residents and guests, use of a “Transit Pass” to encourage residents to use 

public transportation, pedestrian access through the alley, and wanting affordable 

units offered. 

 

 



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Submitted written comments, read aloud for the record): 

  Alicia Ruvalcaba, submitted comments in opposition to the project. 

  David Mathias, submitted comments in favor of the project. 

  Maritza Ruvalcaba, submitted comments in opposition to the project. 

  Ed McCoy, submitted comments in favor of the project. 

  John Jorgenson, submitted comments in opposition to the project. 

 

 COMMISSION ACTION: 

  

 Motion by Commissioner Paul and seconded by Commissioner Serrato to 

recommended approval to City Council with the modifications to the Conditions of 

Approval as provided by City staff and the recommendation to allow continued 

public access through the alleyway.  Motion carried 4-3.  Ayes: Paul, Rainey, 

Serrato, and Weiler.  Noes: Barba, Doan, and Ramirez. 

 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS:   

1. Housing and Community Investment Study 
 

Staff provided an informational report and status update to the Commission. 
 

 COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION: 

  

 The Commissioners thanked Director Strong for his presentation and 

discussed the issue of affordable housing. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
No action was taken; information was presented and discussed. 

 

 

2. Placing Items on Future Planning Commission Agendas and 
Commission Annual Work Plan 
 
Staff provided information for the creation an Annual Work Plan. 

 
 



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

COMMISSION DISCUSSION: 
 

Discussion between City staff and the Commissioners on the process of 

putting items on future agendas and creating a new work plan.   

 
COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
Commission directed staff to initiate preparation of a Commission Work 

Plan to be presented on April 27, 2021.   

 

 

3. Discussion and direction regarding a “Green Infrastructure Plan” and 

related details such as staff support (Commissioner Barba) 

 

 Commissioner Barba continued the discussion to the next Planning 

Commission meeting scheduled for April 27, 2021, to fold the discussion 

into the Commission Work Plan.  

 

COMMISSION ACTION:   
   

 No action taken; the item was continued to next meeting on April 27, 2021. 
 
 

4. Communication logistics with the Planning Commissioners 
 

Discussion on how members of the public can contact or send comments 

to the Planning Commissioners and recommended approach from Planning 

and the City Attorney’s Office to submitting public comments. 

(Commissioner Doan) 

 
  COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION:  
   

Discussion between City staff and the Commissioners on the manner of 

how the public can communicate with the Commissioners. The City and 

Commission have to conform to the Brown Act.  All public correspondence 

has to be retained in the administrative record. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION:   

 
No action was taken; information was presented and discussed. 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  None. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSIONERS:  None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:   

Chair Weiler adjourned the meeting at 10:24 p.m. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ___________________________ 
Mike Strong, Secretary to the   Joanne Tasher, Minutes Clerk 
Escondido Planning Commission 









 

 
 

Agenda Item No.: I.1 
Date:  April 27, 2021 

 

PROJECT NUMBER / NAME:  C20-4286 / Public Nuisance Appeal 

REQUEST: An appeal of a notice and order to abate a public nuisance related to weeds and hazardous 

vegetation. 

 

LOCATION: 400 James Street 

APN / APNS:  231-140-20-00 

GENERAL PLAN / ZONING: Suburban (S) / 

Residential Estates (RE-20) 

 

APPLICANT: Robin L. Stumbo 

PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE:  

Robin L. Stumbo 

 

DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS REQUESTED:  Appeal of a notice and order 

 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  N/A 

PROJECT PLANNER:  N/A 

 

CEQA RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Categorical Exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 

section 15321 (Enforcement Actions by Regulatory Agencies) 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Deny the appeal and uphold the Building Official’s decision, with 

modification of such decision to allow for an extension of time to abate the hazardous vegetation 

(“Option C”) 

 

REQUESTED ACTION:  Approve Resolution No. 2021-03 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING REQUIRED:   ☐ YES ☒ NO 

 

REPORT APPROVALS:            ☒ Mike Strong, Community Development Director  

☐ Adam Finestone, City Planner 

    

 

 

  



 

A. BACKGROUND: 

James R. Stumbo (“Appellant”) owns 4.24 acres of land located at 400 James Street in the City 

of Escondido situated in a Residential Estates zone neighbored to the south and west by single-

family residential properties, and to the north and east by residential estates and residential 

agricultural properties (hereinafter, the “Property”).  The Property contains one two-bedroom/two-

bathroom residential unit comprising 1,616 square feet. 

 

On July 10, 2019, the Escondido Fire Department (“EFD”) received a complaint regarding a fire 

hazard at the Property.  An inspection revealed a public nuisance and fire hazard as defined under 

Chapter 11, Article 2, Division 2 of the Escondido Municipal Code (“EMC”).  That is, there were 

weeds on the Property that endangered public safety by creating a fire hazard.  On August 15, 

2019, the EFD mailed a notice to abate the hazard within 30 days, to Appellant at the Property.  

On re-inspection of the Property, it was noted the weeds had not been removed.  On September 

24, 2019, the EFD posted a notice to abate the hazard within 10 days, on the Property.  A second 

re-inspection of the Property revealed the weeds had not been removed.  On October 9, 2019, a 

final notice of forced abatement was mailed to Appellant at the Property.  The Property was forced 

abated by the City of Escondido’s weed abatement contractor on October 31, 2019, and the EFD’s 

case was closed.  Refer to Attachment 1, EFD case file (Case No. FWE2019-0027). 

 

On August 12, 2020, the City’s Code Enforcement Division received a complaint regarding 

overgrown vegetation causing a fire hazard on the Property.  On October 18, 2020, Code 

Enforcement Officer Don Simpkins inspected the Property from the street and sidewalk, and 

observed tall weeds, grass, and dead vegetation.  Officer Simpkins mailed a Notice of Violation 

on August 19, 2020, to Appellant at the Property.  This Notice was returned to the City as 

undeliverable.  Officer Simpkins then mailed the same Notice of Violation on September 1, 2020 

to Appellant, at Appellant’s second address in Hawaii.  The Notice noted a violation of EMC 

section 6-484(d)(2) (dead, diseased, decayed, unsightly, overgrown, or hazardous vegetation 

maintained on the Property).  The Notice ordered Appellant to cut and remove all hazardous 

vegetation from the Property within 10 days.  On September 16, 2020, Officer Simpkins received 

a letter from Appellant requesting an extension of the time allotted to perform the work.  The 

extension request was granted, giving Appellant an additional 10 days from September 21, 2020, 

to complete the work.   

 

On November 10, 2020, Senior Code Enforcement Officer Jim Kurupas and Code Enforcement 

Officer Mark Nicklin conducted a re-inspection of the Property. They noted the hazardous 

vegetation had not been cut or removed from the Property. Officer Nicklin issued an 

Administrative Citation on November 12, 2020, and mailed it to Appellant at the Property.  This 

citation was returned to the City as undeliverable and voided.  Officer Simpkins then re-issued 

the Administrative Citation on December 9, 2020, and mailed it to Appellant at Appellant’s Hawaii 

address.  A second re-inspection revealed the hazardous vegetation had not been cut or removed 

from the Property.  Officer Simpkins issued a second Administrative Citation on 

December 28, 2020, and mailed it to Appellant at Appellant’s Hawaii address.  

 

2



 

On January 25, 2021, Officer Simpkins received a letter from Appellant dated January 15, 2021, 

providing an updated mailing address in Hawaii.  In the letter, Appellant disputed the issuing of 

the Administrative Citations for failure to cut and remove the hazardous vegetation.  Appellant 

stated in the letter that he had traveled to Escondido in “November and early December” 2020 to 

cut and remove the hazardous vegetation on the Property.  Appellant further requested in the 

letter that the City “cease and desist from assessing fines.” 

 

During this time, the EFD also inspected the Property on October 7, 2020 and January 13, 2021, 

again noting a public nuisance and fire hazard on the Property, as defined under Chapter 11, 

Article 2, Division 2 of the EMC.  On January 18, 2021, Fire Prevention Specialist Robyn L. Taylor 

emailed Appellant referencing Code Enforcement’s case on the Property and informing Appellant 

that the Property would once again be forced abated if Appellant did not cut and remove the 

hazardous vegetation.  On February 1, 2021, Fire Prevention Specialist Taylor forwarded her 

January 18, 2021 email to Appellant after being informed that Appellant had accidentally deleted 

the email.  On February 3, 2021, the EFD posted a Notice to Abate the Hazard within 10 days on 

the Property and mailed the Notice to Appellant at his updated mailing address in Hawaii.  On 

February 14, 2021, Appellant responded to Fire Prevention Specialist Taylor’s email stating his 

January 15, 2021 letter was his appeal of the City’s “arbitrary process.”  

 

Officer Simpkins and Fire Prevention Specialist Taylor both met with Deputy City Attorney Alma 

Gurrola to discuss Appellant’s appeal.  It was determined the appeal was not received in a timely 

manner regardless of which notice Appellant was appealing because it was received past any 

appeal period and did not include the required fees. However, Deputy City Attorney Gurrola 

reviewed the case and advised that Appellant’s confusion may have arisen from receiving notices 

from both Code Enforcement and the EFD.  In order to provide Appellant clarity on the weed 

abatement process, and allow him his due process, it was determined the appropriate notice 

would be re-issued by either Code Enforcement or the EFD. 

 

Code Enforcement took the lead on the case and Officer Simpkins re-issued a Notice and Order 

to Abate a Public Nuisance on March 24, 2021. Officer Simpkins mailed the Notice to Appellant 

via certified mail, return receipt requested at Appellant’s updated mailing address in Hawaii.  The 

Notice identified a violation of EMC section 6-484(d)(2) (dead, diseased, decayed, unsightly, 

overgrown or hazardous vegetation on the Property).  Appellant was given 30 days from the 

issuing of the Notice to cut and remove the dead, diseased, decayed, unsightly, overgrown, or 

hazardous vegetation from the Property.  Appellant was also informed that non-compliance with 

the Notice would result in the City causing the work to be done and billing Appellant for the costs 

or assessing the costs against the Property, re-inspection fees being assessed and administrative 

citation being issued, and the Notice being recorded against the Property.  Furthermore, Deputy 

City Attorney Gurrola wrote a letter to Appellant explaining both Code Enforcement and the EFD’s 

weed abatement process and authority, clarifying that Code Enforcement would be proceeding 

with the weed abatement process, and attaching a copy of the re-issued Notice and Order.  

Deputy City Attorney Gurrola also extended the appeal period from 10 to 15 days, due to 

Appellant’s current location and his previous indication of his desire to appeal.  The letter was  

 

3



 

sent via electronic mail and certified mail to Appellant at Appellant’s previous Hawaii address.  

Refer to Attachment 2, Code Enforcement case file (Case No. C20-4286). 

 

Code Enforcement issued the Notice and Order dated March 24, 2021, pursuant to the Building 

Official’s enforcement authority under Chapter 6, Article 20 of the EMC (“Property Maintenance 

Ordinance”).  The Property Maintenance Ordinance authorizes the Building Official to address 

conditions that are deemed injurious and inimical to the public health, safety, and welfare of the 

residents of the City including property maintenance, building maintenance, polluted water, and 

landscape maintenance.  Code Enforcement acts as the Building Official’s designee utilizing EMC 

section 6-488 as a tool to abate nuisances that pose a danger to life or property.  Code 

Enforcement has abated nuisances like storm damaged trees, fire hazards, and missing pool 

gates.  The abatement procedures set forth in the Property Maintenance Ordinance are 

reasonable and afford due process to all affected persons. Refer to Attachment 3, Property 

Maintenance Ordinance. 

 

On April 6, 2021, the City Clerk’s Office received the Notice of Appeal Application and the required 

filing fee from Appellant.  Refer to Attachment 4, Notice of Appeal. 

 

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

On April 6, 2021, Appellant submitted a Notice of Appeal Application (“Application”) to the City 

Clerk’s Office along with the appropriate filing fee.  In the Application, Appellant provided a number 

of reasons why he cannot comply with the Building Official’s orders referencing the reasons 

provided in his January 15, 2021 letter, and providing additional reasons under the Justification 

for Appeal section.  Appellant also attached to the Application a copy of his January 15, 2021 

letter, and a Kaiser Permanente professional medical bill.  Appellant, in the Application, requests 

a “delay, not exemption,” from the Building Official’s orders.  Refer to Attachment 4. 

 

C. SUPPLEMENTAL DETAILS OF REQUEST: 

 

Hazardous and unsafe conditions, including landscape maintenance, landslides, structural, 

electrical, plumbing, mechanical damage, may trigger enforcement action, including declaring a 

public nuisance on a property and assessing fees and civil penalties against responsible parties. 

If after a period of time as the Building Official considers to be reasonable, it is determined that 

the substandard conditions and/or health and safety violations remain unabated, the conditions 

may be abated by the City or City contractors. The property owner is typically given between 7 to 

30 days to respond to a finding of a public nuisance before the City takes action.  Upon receipt of 

a written request from any person required to comply with the order, the City may grant an 

extension of time if the extension will not create or perpetuate a situation imminently dangerous 

to life or property.  Non-compliance will accrue fee assessments and civil penalties.  Whenever a 

building, structure, portion thereof, or real property is in such immediately dangerous condition 

due to the existence of or to the perilous risk to the health and welfare of the tenants, property 

owners, and the community, the City may take immediate action that can include vacating the 

premises and abatement by the City or City contractors of dangerous conditions or defects.  

4



 

D. PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 

Although the specific procedures for an appeal of a land use development permit may be found 

in Article 61, Section 33-1303 of the Escondido Zoning Code, the procedures for abatement of 

unlawful conditions is provided in Section 6-488 of Article 20 of Chapter 6 of the EMC.  The 

purpose of the appeal process is to provide persons dissatisfied with an order or decision a venue 

for review and possible reversal of that decision.  Pursuant to Section 6-488(c)(1), “Any person 

aggrieved by the action of the building official in issuing a notice and order pursuant to the 

provisions of this article may appeal to the planning commission within ten (10) calendar days of 

service of the notice and order.”  All appeals must be in writing, and must state the decision from 

which the appeal is taken, and must contain a concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.  

The April 6, 2021 appeal is provided in Attachment 4. 

 

The April 6, 2021 appeal was analyzed by City staff and the City Attorney’s Office for conformance 

with Article 20 of Chapter 6 of the EMC.  The specific procedure for an appeal of a discretionary 

decision may be found in subsection (c) of the Application, which requires a written basis or 

reason for the appeal, among other things.  An appeal not containing the basis for appeal may be 

rejected as incomplete.  The following is an overview of the appellant’s position, along with staff’s 

response: 

 

1a. Appellant’s position- Previous attempts were made to abate the public nuisance.   

1b. Staff response- Among other things, the City’s abatement action(s) on the 

Property included an investigation, alleged violations of 

nuisance ordinances, notice(s), and the possibility of monetary 

fines and/or forcible removal of the nuisance.  During the course 

of the abatement procedures, the status and condition of the 

Property has been well documented, suggesting that the City’s 

application of local and state nuisance laws to declare 

overgrown weeds and hazardous vegetation be removed is 

supported by evidence.  The Planning Commission should 

therefore focus its consideration on the evidence in the record, 

and the associated historical timelines, as prima facie evidence 

and need for the abatement of a Property-related public 

nuisance.   

2a. Appellant’s position- Escondido property inspection standards are vague, arbitrary, 

and changeable.   

2b. Staff response- It is common knowledge that weeds and hazardous vegetation 

are or may become a public nuisance.  The State Weed 

Abatement Act states that " '[w]eeds' means weeds which when 

mature bear wingy or downy seeds, which will attain such a 

large growth as to become a fire menace when dry, or which 

5



are otherwise noxious or dangerous." (Gov’t Code § 39560(b).)  

California Fire Code section 304 prohibits accumulation of 

combustible waste material creating a fire hazard upon 

premises, prohibits accumulation of, among other things, weeds 

and litter, on various kinds of properties including vacant lots, 

and requires removal of weeds, grass, vines or other growth 

that is capable of being ignited and endangering property.  

These state laws are not vague, arbitrary, and/or changeable.  

 

It is also well settled that in the exercise of its police powers, a 

municipality may enact ordinances the object of which is to 

abate or prevent nuisances.  The purpose of the City’s Property 

Maintenance Ordinance (Article 20 of Chapter 6) is to require 

property owners to maintain their properties and remove or 

destroy the proscribed weeds; and in the event of a failure to do 

so, to have the same abated as a public nuisance by the City 

and to charge the expense of such abatement against the 

affected property. Article 20 of the EMC defines those 

conditions that constitute visual blight and that could result in 

harmful or deleterious conditions.  Article 20 also establishes 

guidelines for the correction of violations and nuisances that 

afford due process and procedural guarantees to affected 

property owners.  It is clear that the ordinance is intended to 

promote the health, safety, and welfare of the City – in a uniform 

and fair manner – and as such falls within the compass of 

municipal police powers.  

 

3a. Appellant’s position- Leniency should be provided because of the novel coronavirus 

pandemic.   

3b. Staff response- The City has broad discretion to determine both what public 

interests are and the measures necessary for the protections of 

such interests.  The City provides a uniform procedure to 

promote property maintenance and the enhancement of the 

livability, community appearance, and the social, economic, and 

environmental conditions of the community.  The section of the 

code that addresses landscape maintenance requires that the 

owner or other specified person occupying or having charge of 

any building, lot or premises shall not permit weeds to remain 

on such premises or public sidewalks or streets, or alleys 

between said premises and the center line of any public street 

or alley.  There are no waivers or exemptions from these local 

and state requirements.   

 

4a. Appellant’s position- The dead vegetation is a result of no water service.   

6



 

4b. Staff response- In review of the appeal in its entirety, overgrown weeds and 

hazardous vegetation on the Property constitutes a public 

nuisance that requires abatement despite the Appellant’s 

assertion that the conditions on the Property were not a 

nuisance or a result of actions set forth in previous steps or 

actions.  The Planning Commission therefore is limited to 

consideration of the appeal and making the necessary findings 

based on the requirements in the ordinance and within the 

constraints of federal and state law governing the regulation of 

weed and rubbish abatement.  It has no jurisdiction to go further.  

The Planning Commission does not have the authority to 

reverse billings, restore water service, or to waive fees and 

penalties related to water billing accounts.  

 

5a. Appellant’s position- Investigation on the property from reported burglaries might 

have led to the weed abatement notice. 

 

5b. Staff response- In review of the appeal in its entirety, overgrown weeds and 

hazardous vegetation on the Property constitute a public 

nuisance that requires abatement despite the Appellant’s 

assertion that the conditions on the Property may not have been 

identifiable or discoverable.  The manner in which the public 

nuisance is identified or discovered is irrelevant to the appeal.   

 

6a. Appellant’s position- Requests for a delay in enforcement, not an exemption.  

 

5b. Staff response- Over the past seven months, Appellant has been provided with 

multiple notices and an extended period of time to cut and 

remove the weeds and hazardous vegetation on the Property.  

Although Appellant does not deny the presence of dead 

vegetation on the Property and acknowledges the importance 

of weed abatement, the hazardous vegetation remains on the 

Property.  As the property owner, Appellant is responsible for 

the maintenance of the Property.  An extension of time is not 

warranted.   

 

The Planning Commission's review of the Building Official’s decision is de novo, that is, the 

Planning Commission may decide the matter without deference to the decision of the Building 

Official.  The Planning Commission's review is not limited to the ground of the appeal as submitted 

by the Appellant, but may include all issues surrounding the maintenance of the Property.  The 

Planning Commission can review the prior proceedings, reference applicable local regulations, 

the findings of the Building Official, and any written or oral testimony provided at the Planning 

Commission public hearing, and may utilize or adopt any, all, or none of them.  Any decision of  

 

7



 

the Planning Commission should be made through findings based on substantial evidence, in 

writing to the extent feasible.   The actions available to the Planning Commission are: 

 

Option A:  Approve the appeal and set aside the decision of the Building 

Official based on specific reasons; 

Option B: Deny the appeal and affirm the decision of the Building Official.  

This option would require the abatement of hazardous vegetation 

on the Property by 30 days of March 24, 2021; or 

Option C: Deny the appeal, but provide an extended amount of time for 

compliance.  This option would require the abatement of hazardous 

vegetation on the Property within 10 days of April 27, 2021.  The 

modification of the Building Official’s prior determination would 

allow the owner of the property an extended period of time to abate 

the hazardous vegetation. 

 

E. FISCAL ANALYSIS:  N/A 

 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS:   

 

California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines list classes of projects that have been 

determined not to have a significant effect on the environment and as a result are exempt from 

further environmental review under CEQA. The notice and order related to the appeal qualifies 

for an exemption under CEQA Guidelines section 15321 (Enforcement Actions by Regulatory 

Agencies).  This category includes public nuisance abatement orders and enforcement actions 

by the Code Enforcement Division.  The CEQA Notice of Exemption prepared for the Project 

(included as Attachment 5 to the Planning Commission staff report) demonstrates that the Project 

qualifies for the exemption and does not have a significant effect on the environment. 

G. PUBLIC INPUT:  N/A 

 

H. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Weed and hazardous vegetation abatement is paramount in mitigating vegetation wildfires due to 

the highly flammable nature of the vegetation in the City.  Throughout the years, California has 

been impacted tremendously by enormous wildfires which have resulted in loss of life and 

property, and financial loss in the billions of dollars.  The pressing need for wildfire prevention has 

led to the development of the weed abatement program.  Weed and hazardous vegetation 

abatement in the City can be addressed by Code Enforcement and the EFD.  Both Code 

Enforcement and the EFD have inspected the Property and identified a public nuisance and fire 

hazard as defined under Chapters 6 and 11 of the EMC.  The need to have the hazardous 

vegetation cut and removed from the Property becomes increasingly pressing as we reach higher 

temperatures and dryer weather in the year. 

 

8



 

Over the past seven months, Appellant has been provided with multiple notices and an extended 

period of time to cut and remove the hazardous vegetation on the Property.  Although, Appellant 

does not deny the presence of dead vegetation on the Property and acknowledges the importance 

of weed and hazardous vegetation abatement, the hazardous vegetation remains on the Property.  

As the property owner, Appellant is responsible for the maintenance of the Property.  Although, 

the City does not dictate the manner in which a public nuisance must be abated, as long as it is 

carried forth in a legal manner, Appellant has been made aware of multiple options available to 

correct the violations, including the hiring of a contractor.  Appellant’s failure to take advantage of 

these options, failure to comply with the notices issued in the EFD’s 2019 case, and failure to 

specify the amount of time needed to complete the abatement, indicates the hazardous vegetation 

will likely remain on the Property indefinitely.    

 

The record does not show any new evidence presented by the Appellant in the Application that 

would have materially affected the Building Official’s prior determination.  Unless corrective 

measures are undertaken by the City, the existence of weeds and hazardous vegetation on the 

Property will continue to endanger public safety.   City staff recommends that the Planning 

Commission determine that a substantial issue exists with respect to the Property.  Staff 

recommends the Planning Commission deny Appellant’s appeal, but provide an extended amount 

of time for compliance. allowing the City to abate the public nuisance identified in the Notice and 

Order issued March 24, 2021.  In such event that Draft Resolution No. 2021-03 be adopted as 

recommended by City staff, the abatement of hazardous vegetation on the Property must occur 

within 10 days of April 27, 2021. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. EFD case file (Case No. FWE2019-0027) 

2. Code Enforcement case file (Case No. C20-4286) 

3. Property Maintenance Ordinance 

4. Notice of Appeal 

5. Notice of Exemption under CEQA Guidelines section 15321 (Enforcement Actions by 

Regulatory Agencies) 

6. Draft Planning Commission Resolution No. 2021-03 

9



City of Escondido 
Cityworks PLL Fire - 1 Month Expiration Chronology 

Case#: FWE2019-0027 

Classification: 
Owner: Stumbo Robin L 

Location: 400 James St 

APN: 2311402000 

Zone: RE-20 

Run on 4/14/2021 at 5:08:27PM 

Report ID: ESC052 Page 1 of 2 

Fire - 1 Month Expiration FWE2019-0027 

Source Task Code 

CASE 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

TASK CONVERT 

Comment/Note Text Created/Modified By 

OPENED: 08/14/2019 (SB) - CLOSED: 10/31/2019 (SB) - LAST ACTION: 12/11/2019 (SB) - plladmin 

FOLLOW UP: 09/16/2019 (SB) - COMP DATE: 10/31/2019 (SB) - REFERRED: FIRE 

CHRONOLOGY- CASE OPENED: (8/14/2019 2:11:18 PM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(8/14/2019 2:11 PM SB) 
Received a complaint from Fire Personnel regarding a fire hazard at this location Date CompletE 

(Jul 10 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - INITIAL INSPECTION VF: (8/14/2019 2:20:00 PM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(8/14/2019 2:20 PM SB) 
An inspection was conducted at this location and if was found to be in violation. See attached 
photo Date Completed (Aug 7 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - NOTICE OF VIOLATION: (8/14/2019 2:20:29 PM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(8/14/2019 2:20 PM SB) 
See attached document Date Completed (Aug 15 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - NO PROGRESS: (9/23/2019 3:06:42 PM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(9/23/2019 3:06 PM SB) 
A reinspection was conducted at this location and no progress has been made. This property 

will be posted for 10 days. See attached photo Date Completed (Sep 23 2019 12:00AM) -
SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - NOTICE & ORDER: (9/23/2019 3:06:59 PM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(9/23/2019 3:06 PM SB) 
See attached document Date Completed (Sep 24 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - NO PROGRESS: (10/9/2019 7:30:25 AM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(10/9/2019 7:30 AM SB) 
A reinspection was conducted after posting and no progress has been made, this property will b 
force abated. See attached document Date Completed (Oct 9 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA 

BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - NOTICE & ORDER: (10/9/2019 7:32:06 AM SB) Action Created Date plladmin 

Completed (Oct 9 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

Date 

8/14/19 12:00 am 

8/14/19 12:00 am 

8/14/19 12:00 am 

8/14/19 12:00 am 

9/23/19 12:00 am 

9/23/19 12:00 am 

10/8/19 12:00 am 

10/9/19 12:00 am 

ATTACHMENT 1

10



Report ID: ESC052 Page 2 of 2 

Fire - 1 Month Expiration FWE2019-0027 

Source 

TASK 

TASK 

Task Code 
CONVERT 

CONVERT 

CommenUNote Text Created/Modified By 
....;..;;.;.;.;....;.;;__..;..;..;._;_;.;.;... ________________________ 

CHRONOLOGY - PROJECT COMPLETE: (12/11/2019 11 :54:49 AM SB) Action Created plladmin 

(12/11/201911:54 AM SB) 
This property was force abated in October 2019 Date Completed (Oct 31 2019 12:00AM) -
SANDRA BAUER 

CHRONOLOGY - CASE CLOSED: (12/11/2019 11 :55:19 AM SB) Action Created Date 
Completed (Oct 31 2019 12:00AM) - SANDRA BAUER 

plladmin 

Date 

12/11/19 12:00 am 

12/11/19 12:00 am 

11



Weed Abatement 

STUMBO ROBIN L 

400 JAMES ST 

ESCONDIDO CA 92027 

12



�

���DO 
Escondido Fire Department

1163 North Centre City Pkwy. Escondido, CA 92026 Phone: 760-839-5417 Fax: 760-739-7060 weedabatement@escondido.org 

NOTICE OF FORCED ABATEMENT 

Date: October 9, 2019

Property Owner: STUMBO ROBIN L

Location of Hazard: 400 JAMES STREET, ESCONDIDO, CA

Mailing Address: 400 JAMES STREET, ESCONDIDO, CA

Parcel Number: 231-140-20 

Because of the highly flammable nature of the vegetation in our area, the Escondido Fire Department has the
authority to administer a Weed Abatement Program under the City of Escondido Municipal Code. This program
has proven effective in mitigating the spread of vegetation fires in our City and has played a part in reducing the
amount of destruction due to these fires.

BY THIS NOTICE WE ARE WE INFORMING YOU THAT YOU HAVE FAILED TO ABATE THE HAZARDS 
ON YOUR PROPERTY AND THAT THE HAZARDS WILL BE ABATED BY THE CITY AT YOUR EXPENSE. 

An inspection of your property on August 14, 2019 determined that it was in violation of the HAZARD

REDUCTION AND VEGETATION CLEARANCE STANDARD. As a result, a notice was sent to the mailing address of
record requesting that these violations be corrected within thirty (30) calendar days. A follow-up inspection on
September 23, 2019 revealed that the property was still not in compliance. A notice was then posted on the
property by the Fire Department and a certified letter was sent to the address of record granting ten (10)
calendar days to complete the requested work. Alter ten (10) calendar days, on October 8, 2019 the property
was inspected once again. At that time, compliance had not been achieved. As such, the property has been
referred to the City of Escondido's Weed Abatement contractor for forced abatement.

In addition to the failed re-inspection fee of $100.00 for the inspection on September 23, 2019 and on 
October 8, 2019, you are also responsible for the costs of forced abatement by the City of Escondido's Weed
Abatement contractor for which you will be billed by the contractor directly.

If you have already cleared your property, or feel you have received this notice in error, please contact the
Escondido Fire Department as soon as possible at 760-839-5417. If no one is available to take your call, leave a
message with your phone number, property address or parcel number, and the best time to return your call.

Code section violation requiring abatement:
Escondido Municipal Code Ch.6, Article-2, Division-2, 11-41.

Al Dobynes, Fire Marshal 
(760) 839-5417

Note: If you suspect your property may contain any rare/endangered species or related sensitive habitat such
as coastal sage or a riparian zone, a permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (858-467-4201)
and/or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (760-431-9440) may be required prior to clearing. Call for more
information.

13



14



15



Weed Abatement 

STUMBO ROBIN L 

400JAMES ST 

ESCONDIDO CA 92027 

16



�

E�CONDIDO 
City of Cho�.,.......- Escondido Fire Department 

1163 North Centre City Pkwy. Escondido, CA 92026 Phone (760) 839-5417 Fax (760) 739-7060 weedabatement@escondido.org 

NOTICE TO 

ABATE 

HAZARD/ 

PUBLIC 

NUISANCE 
Notice is given that any weeds, grasses, dead shrubs, or dead trees upon the lot or parcel of land in the jurisdiction of the
Escondido Fire Department, as described by Assessor's Parcel Number:231-140-20, and in the street, sidewalk, and in
the parkway, adjacent thereto are a public nuisance in that they are a fire hazard or in all probability will become a fire
hazard; and that any rubbish, rubble, discarded asphalt, concrete, auto bodies and parts or other waste material thereon
that might interfere with the abatement of the aforementioned public nuisance are also a public nuisance.

Said public nuisances are required to be abated within ten (10) days of the posted date. If not abated on or before this
date, the Escondido Fire Department will authorize forced abatement and the costs thereof will be billed to the property
owner directly. Should the bills not be settled, the cost will be assessed against the land and collected through tax billing.
A lien will also be placed on the parcel. An administrative fee may be added to the costs.

This notice is given pursuant to the provisions of Escondido Municipal Code Ch.6, Article-2, Division-2, 
11-41. Any questions can be forwarded to Fire Prevention (760) 839-5417.

Dated and posted this 24th day of September, 2019

Al Dobynes, Fire Marshal 
Escondido Fire Department 
760-839-5417

17



Aug 15, 2019 

Stumbo Robin L 

400 James St 

Escondido CA, 92027 

Escondido Fire Department 

1163 N Centre City Parkway 

Escondido, CA 92026 

Phone: 760-839-5400 

fire.escondido.org 

NOTICE TO ABATE HAZARD 

• 

Because of the highly flammable nature of the vegetation in our area, the Escondido Fire Department has been authorized to 

administer the Weed Abatement Program under the City of Escondido Municipal Code. This program has proven effective in 

mitigating the spread of vegetation fires in our district and has played a part in keeping the destruction due to these fires to a 

minimum. 

By this notice we are requiring owners within the city to take responsibility to ensure that their property meets the enclosed 
hazard reduction & vegetation clearance standards. See attachments for additional information. 

Location of Hazard: 400 James Street, Escondido {Parcel Number 2311402000) 

Instructions for Abatement: 

Combustible Debris: Maintain premise to be free of vegetation, combustibles and/or other debris. Remove all dead, dying, 

or diseased trees vegetation and shrubs. 

If you do not own this property, have already cleared your property, or feel you have received this notice in error, please contact 

Rincon Fire Protection District/Escondido Fire Department as soon as possible at (760) 839-5417. If no one is available to answer 

your call, leave a message with your phone number, property address or parcel number and best time to return your call. 

This is your notice to abate fire hazards and/or public nuisances that may be existing on your property in accordance with the city 

of Escondido Municipal Code (Ordinance Number 2011-03 (RR) Division 2, Chapter 49, Section 4906.4). This clearance must be 

accomplished no later than 09/16/2019. After this date, the property will be re-inspected. If the property does not comply with 

the abatement requirements, it will be posted with a notice giving 10 calendar days to complete the work and will be charged a 

$100 failed re-inspection fee. The property will be re-inspected after the ten days. If the abatement has not been completed, you 

may be charged an administrative fee and are subject to clearing by the fire department's weed abatement contractor at the 

owner's expense. Property owners are strongly urged to arrange for the clearing of their own parcels before the deadline, as 

these requirements will be strictly enforced and the clearing services will be substantially more expensive. 

Note: If you suspect your property may contain any rare/endangered species or related sensitive habitat such as coastal sage or 

a riparian zone, a permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (858-467-4201) and/or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service (760-431-9440) may be required prior to clearing. Call for more information. 

Review/ Appeal: Property owners may request a review of the determination that a nuisance or violation exists or to the 

administrative fee, or both, by filing a written objection with the Chief of the Escondido Fire Department within 5 days of the date 

of service of this Notice. The decision of the Chief of the Fire Department may be appealed as set forth in Escondido Municipal 

Code Ch.6, Article-2, Division-2, 11-41. 

Al Dobynes, Fire Marshal 

(760) 839-5417

18



19



CODE ENFORCEMENT 

CASE SYNOPSIS 

CASE NUMBER: C20-4286 

NAME OF RESPONSIBLE PARTY: ROBIN STUMBO, PROPERTY OWNER 

SITE ADDRESS: 400 JAMES ST., ESCONDIDO, CA 92027 

MAILING ADDRESS: 2205 MAKANANI DRIVE,# 2, HONOLULU, HI 96817 

ASSIGNED OFFICER: DON SIMPKINS 

ATTACHMENT 2

20



Pending Violation(s): 

EMC 6-484(d)(2); unlawful for any responsible person to allow or maintain on such property any dead, 

diseased, decayed, unsightly, overgrown or hazardous vegetation. 

Actual contact with Responsible Party: 

1. NOV issued 08/19/2020 for (EMC) 6-484(d)(2).  Mailed to Robin Stumbo and posted on the

property.

2. NOV issued 09/10/2020 for (EMC) 6-484(d)(2).   Mailed to Robin Stumbo and posted on the

property.

3. Notice and Order issued 03/24/2021 (EMC) 6-484(d)(2).   Mailed via Certified Mail, return

receipt requested.

4. Administrative Citation #3928, $100.00, issued 12/09/2020.

5. Administrative Citation #3978, $250.00, issued 12/28/2020.

6. The Fire Marshal posted the property on 2/3/2021 with a Notice to Abate a Hazard, Public

Nuisance and mailed it to Robin Stumbo.

Current case(s): 

C20-4286.  

Previous case(s): 

FEW 2019-0027.  Fire Department 

Key Issue(s): 

Mr. Robin Stumbo is the listed owner of the large property at 400 James St.  Mr. Stumbo is currently 

residing in Honolulu, Hi., at 2205 Makanani Dr. #2.  There have been complaints issued by the residents 

who’s properties border Mr. Stumbo’s property.  The complaints are of dead and overgrown vegetation 

that constitutes a fire hazard for their homes that border 400 James St.    Mr. Stumbo has been sent 

several NOV’s, several Administrative Citations, and a Notice and Order regarding the property and fire 

hazard it presents.  Mr. Stumbo’s property was posted as a fire hazard by the Fire Department.  

Mr. Stumbo has written many emails and letters stating reasons why he could not return to take care of 

his property.  His latest correspondence has been to seek an appeal to the Notice and Order and forced 

abatement of the hazardous vegetation on his property by the City.   

Specific Actions Required to Correct the Violation(s): 

Cut and remove hazardous vegetation. 

21



y/1JJ -

Donald Simpkins 
new· 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Code Enforcement 

Monday, August 17, 2020 7:42 AM 

Donald Simpkins 

FW: Form Submission Received 

James A. l<urupas: CRO,CCEO 

Senior Code Enforcement Officer 

Code Enforcement- Business Licensing I City of Escondido 

Direct: 760-839-6376 

www.escondido.org 

From: noreply@escondido.org <noreply@escondido.org> 

Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2020 1:07 PM 

To: Code Enforcement <codeenforcement2@ecity.ci.escondido.ca.us> 

Subject: Form Submission Received 

400 James Street - assigned to Don Simpkins - JK 

From Ur!: https://www.escondido.org/request-for-investigation-eng.aspx 
From JP Address: 98.176.168.158 

Date: 8/12/2020 
Address of Violation: 400 James Street 

Apt. Number: 

____ ,.,,.. 

DETAILS OF COMPLAINT (Please be specific): Overgrown weeds are a fire hazard to properties abuting 
this property. 

Date Reported to Property Manager/Owner: 
Name: 

Phone Number: 
Address: 
PERSON REGISTERING COMPLAINT (please specify): 

Name: 
Your Phone Number: 

Your Street Address: 

Your City:� 
Your State: 

Your Zip Code: 

E-mail Address:

A form has been submitted, click the link below to view the submission: 

1 

TT 

22



Parcel Details for APN: 2311402000 

Parcel Data 

Parcel Address: 

Parcel Owners: 

Parcel Owner Address: 

Jurisdiction 

Zoning Designation: 

General Plan Designation: 

Acreage: 

Square Footage: 

Historic: 

Legal Description: 

Subdivision Name: 

Subdivision Map: 

Year Built: 

400 James St, Escondido, CA, 92027-5318 

Stumbo Robin L 

400 James St, ESCONDIDO, CA, 92027 

ES 

RE-20 

s 

4.24 / 4.21 - (Assessor/ GIS) 

184694 / 183518 - (Assessor/ GrS) 

null 

BLK 244*LOT 8*POR* 

RANCHO RINCON DEL DIABLO RESURVEY SHEET A 

000723 

45 

Number of Units/Residences I 

Fraction Interest 

Tract Number 

Land Use - Assessor 

04203 

110 

Assessor Use Classification I 0 

Document Type 

Document Number 

Document Date 

Number of Bedrooms 

Number of Bathrooms 

Garage Conversion 

Level Pad Area 

Total Living Space 

Building Addition Area 

Number of Garage Stalls 

Number of Carport Stalls 

Pool on Grounds 

Other Data 

Cases: None 

Special Districts: None 

Building Permits: None 

Addresses: 

400 .James St 

489594 

092696 

002 

020 

N 

1616 

0 

002 

000 

N 

23



Epic Viewer (v2.2) 

200ft 

-117 .030 33.145 Degrees

fvlar,�-:h 400 James St, Escondido 

24



City of Escondido Run on 4/16/2021 at 9:20:56AM 

���h�DO Cityworks PLL Code Enforcement Chronology 
Case #: C20-4286 

Classification: RPT-PROJECT NEAT-PROP MAINTNCE 
Owner: Stumbo Robin L 

Location: 400 James St 

APN: 2311402000 
Zone: RE-20 

Report ID: ESC052 

Code Enforcement C20-4286 

Source 

CASE 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

Task Code 

C-CASERVW

C-INITINSP

Comment/Note Text Created/Modified By 

DSIMPKINS@ecity 

From Request 558869: 
Code: CE PROP MAINT 
Description: CE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 
Details: 
Comments: Overgrown vegetation. Fire hazard. 

I received a submission form and have created a Code case. DSIMPKINS@ecity 

I went out to the property on an inspection in response to a citizens submission form. The DSIMPKINS@ecity 

complaint was that the large undeveloped property behind her and other residences is overgrow 
with tall weeds, grass and dead vegetation. The R/P feels this is a fire hazard. 

During my inspection I could not gain access to the property however from the street and 
sidewalk the overgrown vegetation is visible. 

C-NOTEVIOL I issued a NOV to the listed owner of the property at 400 James St. I mailed the NOV via USPS. DSIMPKINS@ecity

Robin L. Stumbo 
400 James St. 
Escondido, CA. 92027 

C-CASE-INF I received the NOV that I had mailed to Robin Stumbo back in the mail as vacant and unable to DSIMPKINS@ecity 
forward. I have found another address for Stumbo and I am re-sending this NOV to her at the 
new address with a new compliance date. 

Robin Stumbo 
2975 Ala Napuaa Pl. 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96818-2737 

C-FLUPINSP NOV mailed to Robin Stumbo
2975 Ala Napuaa Pl. #208 

Escondido, CA. 96818-2737 

DSIMPKINS@ecity 

Page 1 of 4 

Date 

8/18/20 2:44 pm 

8/18/20 2:48 pm 

8/18/20 2:58 pm 

8/18/20 3:01 pm 

9/1/20 2:27 pm 

9/1/20 3:06 pm 

25



Report ID: ESC052 

Code Enforcement C20-4286 

Source 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

TASK 

Task Code CommenUNote Text 
C-NOTEVIOL I mailed a new NOV to the owner of the property.

Robin A. Stumbo 
2975 Ala Napuaa Pl. #208 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96818-2737 

Created/Modified By 
DSIMPKINS@ecity 

C-CASE-INF On 09/21/2020, I received a letter from Robin Stumbo from Hawaii requesting an extension to DSIMPKINS@ecity 
comply with the NOV issued to her. She stated that she has had travel issues with the state of 
Hawaii during the Covid 19 pandemic, and is going to have a surgical procedue. Stumbo states 
that she wants an extension so she can return to Escondido to supervise the cleanup of her 
property when she is able to. 

I wrote a letter to Stumbo giving her an additional ten days from the date of receiving my letter tc 
arrange for the clean up of her property or face fines. 

C-CASE-INF Case re-assigned to Mark Nicklin. JKURUPAS@ecity 

C-FLUPINSP Senior Code Officer Jim Kurupas and I conducted a follow-up inspection on the property. I saw MNICKLIN@ecity
weeds and dead vegetation in violation of Escondido Municipal Codes. I took photographs for 
documentation. 

C-CITEISSU I issued the property owner - Robin Stumbo Administrative Citation# 3964 and mailed it to her MNICKLIN@ecity 

via U.S.P.S. 

C-IREINSP I completed the form "Intent to Assess Re-Inspection fees and addressed it to Robin Stumbo. I MNICKLIN@ecity 

mailed it to her via U.S.P.S. 

C-FLUPINSP On 11/17/2020 an Administrative Citation that had been mailed to Robin Stumbo was returned t< DSIMPKINS@ecity
City Hall as undeliverable. The address that had been used was not the current mailing address 

for Stumbo. 

The Admin Cite was voided and a new cite (3928) was sent out on 12/09/2020 to the correct 
address as well as a Notice of intent to assess re inspection fees. 

C-CITEISSU A new Administrative Citation was issued and the previous citation was voided on 12/09/2020. DSIMPKINS@ecity 

C-FLUPINSP On 12/24/2020 I went back by the property on an inspection. We are currently in a Red Flag fire DSIMPKINS@ecity
hazard alert with currently blowing Santa Ana wind conditions. The property is overgrown with 

dead, overgrown and hazardous vegetation. There are dead trees, brush, shrubbery and dead 
palm frond skirts on the existing palm trees. This property is very large and butts up to many 
resident back yards along James Street. 

On 09/01/2020 the owner was issued and sent a NOV, via USPS for the violations. On 
12/09/2020, an Administrative Citation #3928 on 12/09/2020. Ms. Stumbo has not made any 
attempt to correct the violation. 

As of 12/24/2020 the violation and fire hazard still exist. I am issuing a second Administrative 
Citation #3978, for $250.00 and assessing a $52.00 re-inspection fee. The Citation will be 

Page 2 of 4 

Date 

9/1/20 3:08 pm 

9/21/20 8:04 am 

11/10/20 9:08 am 

11/12/20 8:40 am 

11/12/20 8:42 am 

11/12/20 8:43 am 

12/9/20 8:21 am 

12/9/20 8:23 am 

12/24/20 1 :24 pm 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



ChaRter 6 BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE 20. PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 

Sec. 6-480. Title. 

This article shall be known as the "City of Escondido Property Maintenance Ordinance." (Ord. No. 85-44, § 1, 7-10-
85) 

Sec. 6-481. Findings. 

The council finds and determines as follows: 

(a) The city has a history and reputation for well-kept properties and the property values and the general welfare of
the community are founded, in part, upon the appearance and maintenance of private and public properties. 

(b) There is a need for further emphasis on property maintenance and sanitation in that certain conditions, as
described in this article, have been found from place to place throughout the city. 

( c) The existence of such conditions described in this article is injurious and inimical to the public health, safety, and
welfare of the residents of the city and contributes substantially and increasingly to the deterioration of neighborhoods. 

( d) Unless corrective measures are undertaken to alleviate such existing conditions and assure the avoidance of
future problems in this regard, the public health, safety, and general welfare, and specifically the social and economic 
standards of the community, will be depreciated. 

( e) The abatement of such conditions will improve the general welfare and image of the city.

(f) The abatement procedures set forth in this article are reasonable and afford due process to all affected persons.

(g) The uses and abuses of property as described in this article reasonably relate to the proper exercise of police
power to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the public. (Ord. No. 85-44, § 1, 7-10-85) 

Sec. 6-482. Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this article, shall be construed as defined in this section, unless 
from the context a different meaning is specifically defined and more particularly directed to the use of such words or 
phrases: 

(a) Attractive nuisance shall mean any condition, instrumentality, or machine which is unsafe and unprotected and
thereby dangerous to young children by reason of their inability to appreciate the peril therein, and which may reasonably 
be expected to attract young children to the premises and risk injury by playing with, in, or on it. Attractive nuisances 
may include, but shall not be limited to: 

( 1) Abandoned and/ or broken equipment,

(2) Hazardous pools, ponds, and excavations, and

(3) Neglected machinery.

(b) Landowner shall mean the person to whom land is assessed as shown on the last equalized assessment roll of the
county and the City of Escondido. 

( c) Parkway shall mean that portion of a street right-of-way which lies between the property line and the outside
edge of a gutter or gutter lip, including a driveway approach. Where no curb exists, "parkway" shall mean the area of 
property from the property line to the edge of the pavement. 

( d) Property shall mean any lot or parcel of land. For the purposes of this definition, "lot or parcel ofland" shall
include any alley, sidewalk, parkway, or unimproved public easement abutting such lot or parcel ofland. 

( e) Reinspection fee shall mean a fee charged against a responsible person who has become the subject of city
enforcement of state or local law, and for which there is a need to recover the city's actual cost of a second or any 

ATTACHMENT 3

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



ATTACHMENT 4

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



 

 

   CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

PLANNING DIVISION 

201 NORTH BROADWAY 

ESCONDIDO, CA 92025-2798 

(760) 839-4671 

 
 

 Notice of Exemption 
 

To: San Diego Assessor/Recorder/County Clerk 
Attn: Fish and Wildlife Notices 
1600 Pacific Highway, Room 260 
San Diego, CA  92101 
MS A-33 

From: City of Escondido 
201 North Broadway 
Escondido, CA  92025 

 

Project Title/Case No.:  C20-4286 / Public Nuisance Appeal 
 

Project Location - Specific:    235 S. Pine Street, APN 231-140-20-00. 
 

Project Location - City:  Escondido     Project Location - County:  San Diego 
 

Description of Project: An appeal of a notice and order to abate a public nuisance related to weeds and hazardous 
vegetation 
 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  City of Escondido 
 

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: 
 
Name:    Robin L. Stumbo           Telephone:   N/A  

Address:  400 James Street, Escondido CA 92025  
 

  Private entity  School district   Local public agency  State agency  Other special district 
 

Exempt Status:  Categorical Exemption.  CEQA Guidelines section 15321 (Enforcement Actions by Regulatory 
Agencies). 

 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

The proposed project involves the consideration of an appeal filed in protest of a notice and order to abate weeds 
and hazardous landscaping.  Section 15321 provides an exemption for this enforcement actions by regulatory 
agencies, including public nuisance abatement orders and enforcement actions by the Code Enforcement Division. 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Mike Strong, Director Area Code/Telephone/Extension (760) 839-4556  

 
Signature:                                                            
 Mike Strong, Director of Community Development Date 
 

 Signed by Lead Agency  Date received for filing at OPR:             N/A  

ATTACHMENT 5 

102



  Planning Commission 
 Hearing Date:  April 27, 2021 

 Effective Date: May 10, 2021 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2021-03 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
DENYING THE APPEAL AND UPHOLDING THE 
BUILDING OFFICIAL’S DECISION, WITH 
MODIFICATION OF SUCH DECISION TO ALLOW AN 
EXTENSION OF TIME TO ABATE THE HAZARDOUS 
VEGETATION. 

 
APPLICANT: Robin L. Stumbo 

 
  
 WHEREAS, James R. Stumbo (“Appellant”) owns the property located at 

400 James Street in the City of Escondido (hereinafter, the “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized to investigate allegations of violations of 

the Escondido Municipal Code; and  

 WHEREAS, on August 12, 2020, the City received an allegation of a violation 

of the Escondido Municipal Code on the Property; and 

 WHEREAS, the City investigated said allegations and identified weeds and 

hazardous vegetation on the Property, a violation of the Escondido Municipal Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 24, 2021, a final Notice and Order was issued to the 

Appellant, the recorded owner of the aforementioned Property; and  

 WHEREAS, the City extended the appeal period on the Notice and Order to 

15 days; and 

ATTACHMENT 6 

103



 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2021, Appellant submitted a Notice of Appeal 

Application (“Application”) to the City Clerk’s Office along with the appropriate filing fee; 

and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14 of 

California Code of Regulations, Section 15000 et. seq.), the City is the Lead Agency for 

the Project, as the public agency with the principal responsibility for approving the 

proposed Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Division studied the notice(s), the appeal, 

performed necessary investigations, prepared a written report, and hereby recommends 

denial of the appeal with the modification to allow an extension to abate the hazardous 

vegetation; and  

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021, the Planning Commission conducted a 

meeting, at which time the Planning Commission received and considered the reports 

and recommendation of the Community Development Department and gave all persons 

full opportunity to be heard and to present evidence and testimony regarding the appeal.  

Evidence was submitted to and considered by the Planning Commission, including, 

without limitation:  

a. Written information including case summaries, notices, correspondence, 

and other material, submitted by the Appellant;  

b. Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public;  

104



c. The staff report, dated April 27, 2021, with its attachments as well as City 

staff’s recommendation on the appeal, which is incorporated herein as 

though fully set forth herein; and 

d. Additional information submitted during the April 27, 2021 meeting. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of 

Escondido that: 

1. The above recitations are true and correct.   

2. The Planning Commission, in its independent judgment, has determined 

the Project to be exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15321 (Enforcement Actions by Regulatory Agencies).  This category includes public 

nuisance abatement orders and enforcement actions by the Code Enforcement Division. 

3.  It is within the interest of the Planning Commission to provide a uniform 

and consistent procedure for the abatement of property related public nuisances. 

4. The ordinances related to “Weed Abatement and Rubbish Abatement” 

(Division 2 of Chapter 11 of the EMC) and “Property Maintenance” (Article 20 of Chapter 

6 of the EMC) constitute proper exercises of the City’s police power, and all therein 

designate the responsibility of the owners of real property in the City of Escondido in the 

elimination of the public nuisance created by weeds, rubbish, and refuse on or about their 

property, including the subject Property. 

5. The object of the “Weed Abatement and Rubbish Abatement Ordinance” 

and the “Property Maintenance Ordinance” is one which was properly invoked during the 

course of the investigation(s) on the subject Property; and the City, through a series of 

105



steps (that have been well documented in the April 27, 2021 Agenda Report, which is 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein) has adequately 

determined the actions and corrective measures that are necessary to protect public 

health, safety, and general welfare. 

 6. After consideration of all evidence presented, and studies and 

investigations made by the Planning Commission and on its behalf, the Planning 

Commission hereby denies the appeal with the modification that the order is extended to 

abate hazardous vegetation on the Property within 10 days of April 27, 2021.  If the 

nuisance is not removed within the required time, the nuisance may be abated by the City 

of Escondido or a contractor hired by the City to remove the nuisance.  The property 

owner will be billed for the cost of such abatement plus administrative fees. In addition, 

the property owner or other responsible party may be issued a citation and/or billed for 

the City’s enforcement costs. 

  

106



 PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the Planning 

Commission of the City of Escondido, California, at a regular meeting held on the 27th day 

of April, 2021, by the following vote, to wit: 

 

 AYES: COMMISSIONERS: 

 NOES: COMMISSIONERS: 

 ABSTAINED: COMMISSIONERS: 

 ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: 

 

 
  ______________________________ 
  STAN WEILER, Chair 
  Escondido Planning Commission 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
MIKE STRONG, Secretary of the 
Escondido Planning Commission 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed at the time and by 

the vote above stated. 
 
  
   
                                                     _____________________________ 
  JOANNE TASHER, Minutes Clerk 
  Escondido Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 

Decision may be appealed to City Council 
pursuant to Zoning Code Section 33-1303 

107



 

 
 

Agenda Item No.: I.2 
Date:  April 27, 2021 

 

PROJECT NUMBER / NAME:  HOUSING AND COMMUNITY INVESTMENT STUDY (HCIS)  

REQUEST: Receive and file the informational report and status update 

LOCATION: CityWide 

APN / APNS:  N/A 

GENERAL PLAN / ZONING: N/A 

 

APPLICANT:  Community Development 

Department 

PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE:  

Mike Strong, Director of Community 

Development  

 

DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS REQUESTED:  N/A  

 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  Previous informational presentations to the Planning Commission as described 

in the staff report. 

PROJECT PLANNER:  Mike Strong, Director of Community Development 

 

CEQA RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Categorical Exemption 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file 

 

REQUESTED ACTION:  None 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING REQUIRED:   ☐ YES ☒ NO 

 

REPORT APPROVALS:            ☒ Mike Strong, Community Development Director  

☐ Adam Finestone, City Planner 

    

 

  



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

2 

 

A. BACKGROUND: 

The City of Escondido (“City”) was awarded grant funding to develop three different housing 

plans/studies: 1) a Housing Element Update, 2) a Sector Feasibility Study, and 3) a specific plan 

for the East Valley Target Area.  These three housing studies and plans will be linked together, 

through a common work program theme, called the Housing Community and Investment Study 

(“HCIS”).  The HCIS is a coordination of related studies intended to identify a comprehensive 

vision for maintaining, preserving, and developing housing to address Escondido’s quality of life 

needs.  The HCIS includes the following components.   

 

 Housing Element Update.  The Housing Element portion of the General Plan identifies 

housing needs and establishes clear goals and objectives to inform future housing 

decisions, including how best to accommodate population growth.   

 Sector Feasibility Study.  The Sector Feasibility Study explores all the direct and indirect 

costs associated with new construction to better understand market conditions and 

patterns of housing and community development policy.   

 The East Valley Specific Plan.  The East Valley Specific Plan will be a comprehensive 

planning and zoning document to streamline housing opportunities for a defined 

geographic area of the City, located just east of the former, downtown hospital site.   

 

Background Project material is provided on the City’s project website at 

https://www.escondido.org/hcis.aspx. 

 

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Review and file the informational report and status update.   

 

C. SUPPLEMENTAL DETAILS OF REQUEST: 

 

At its March 23, 2021, meeting, the Planning Commission received a general overview 

presentation about the HCIS and was informed about the release of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing 

Element and Draft East Valley Specific Plan.  Since this was an introductory session, the 

Commission did not walk through the details of the work program or learn much about the content 

of the draft plans.  Rather, individual Planning Commission members provided some initial 

reactions.  Some Commissioners also expressed interest in scheduling a series of meetings to 

cover certain issues in more detail before taking possible future discretionary action.  The purpose 

of this discussion item is to establish a process to follow up on the request to bring back certain 

issues and facilitate Planning Commission review in advance of a formal public hearing process.   

 

Pursuant to the overall work program schedule, the Planning Commission will be asked to take 

action on the HCIS in the late summer of 2021.  During the course of the HCIS work program it is 

anticipated that the Planning Commission would continue to receive regular status updates.  The 

Planning Commission received the second presentation on April 13, 2021.  An overview of the 

remaining project milestones and study session schedule is provided below.  The “review 

meetings” schedule is reflected below, in Table 1.   

https://www.escondido.org/hcis.aspx


Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

3 

 

 

Table 1: HCIS Planning Commission Review Schedule 

 

Meeting 

No. 

Topic Or Discussion Item Covered Milestone or  

Target Date 

1 General overview about the process  March 23, 2021 

2 RHNA Overview April 13, 2021 

3 Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element Goals, Policies, and 

Programs Review 

April 27, 2021 

4 Sector Feasibility Study Overview May 2021 

 Draft East Valley Specific Plan Overview June 2021 

5 Draft EIR Overview Summer 2020 

--- Planning Commission public hearing and recommendation to 

City Council. 

TBD 

 

D. PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 

The April 27, 2021 Planning Commission meeting consists of a review of the draft Housing 

Element goals, policies, and programs.  The April 27, 2021 PowerPoint presentation will be used 

to facilitate the discussion of this item.     

 

The Planning and Zoning Law requires each county and city to adopt a comprehensive, long-term 

general plan for its physical development, and the development of certain lands outside its 

boundaries, that includes, among other mandatory elements, a Housing Element.  The Housing 

Element is the only part of a local general plan that is subject to substantial oversight by the State 

of California.  The State’s interest in local housing elements has been justified by the fact that 

housing is enshrined in state law as a matter of statewide importance.  Housing Element Law 

[Government Code sections 65580 - 65589.8], passed in its original form in 1969, requires that 

all cities and counties in California plan for their residential needs by including housing as an 

element of their comprehensive plans. The State has an investment in this because housing is a 

basic human need. When a Housing Element is revised, the update process provides a vehicle 

for establishing land use strategies reflective of changing needs, resources, and conditions.  

Element updates can also be used by the community to re-examine how housing programs or 

services are delivered to the community.  The State’s purpose in mandating a Housing Element 

per Government Code section 65581, and its update every eight years, is to ensure that each 

local agency has a strategy for how they will contribute to the overall state housing goal.  This 

portion of the law asks cities to plan for the needs of a wider region, not just those of current city 

residents.  However, having an updated plan is also extremely important for local cities and 

counties. Overall, Housing Elements serve as a strategy to help cities prepare for the future.  One 

of the most significant requirements is often called a “fair-share” law, with the term generally 

referring to a regional process by which each local community works together to accommodate a 

fair proportion of future housing needs.  Regional councils of governments, such as the San Diego  

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

4 

 

 

Association of Governments (“SANDAG”), work from the State’s estimates of regional housing 

needs and assign housing goals, or allocation, to each city and unincorporated county area in 

their region. The Regional Housing Need Allocation (“RHNA”) is a state-mandated process, 

implemented by SANDAG, which identifies the total number of housing units that each jurisdiction 

must accommodate in a Housing Element.   

 

About the Housing Element: 

 

The Housing Element is not an isolated policy plan - it is directed by the policy framework of the 

General Plan and attempts to balance needs and values of a community while accomplishing the 

goals of Housing Element legislation. By law, a Housing Element must be updated on a regular 

basis to facilitate the improvement and development of housing. The element must also be 

reviewed and certified by the State Department of Housing and Community Development 

(“HCD”).  Other elements of a General Plan do not have state mandated deadlines for updates.  

However, planning is a continuous process; a General Plan should be reviewed regularly and 

revised as new information becomes available and as community needs and values change.  

Housing Elements are developed to identify and analyze a city’s housing needs, establish 

reasonable goals, objectives, and policies based on those needs, and set forth a comprehensive 

list of actions to achieve the identified goals and objectives.  

 

The content and process by which a Housing Element is prepared is prescribed in Government 

Code section 65583.  Under state Housing Element law, the Housing Element must include a 

discussion of the current and future needs of the community, including the allocated amount from 

the region’s future housing need. This can be broken down into six housing-related categories, 

which are summarized below. 

 

1. Adequate Sites Inventory [Government Code sections 65583(a)(3) & 

65583(c)(1)] 

 

A local agency must identify actions that will be taken to make sites available 

during the planning period with appropriate zoning and development standards 

and with services/facilities to accommodate the city’s share of regional housing 

need for each income level.  Government Code section 65583.2(c) establishes the 

minimum densities needed to potentially provide housing units for low- and very-

low-income households (i.e., 20 units per acre density in rural/suburban areas and 

30 units per acre in regional metropolitan areas). 

 

2. Affordable Housing [Government Code sections 65583(a)(7) & 65583(c)(2)] 

 

A local agency must show how it intends to assist in the development of adequate 

housing to meet the needs of extremely low, very low, low, and moderate-income 

households. 

 

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

5 

 

 

 

3. Mitigation of Constraints [Government Code sections 65583(a)(5) & 

65583(c)(3)] 

 

A local agency must address, and where appropriate and legally possible remove 

governmental constraints to, the maintenance, improvement, and development of 

housing, including housing for all income levels and housing for persons with 

disabilities. 

 

4. Conservation [Government Code section 65583(c)(4)] 

 

A local agency must conserve and improve the condition of the existing affordable 

housing stock. 

 

5. Equal Housing Opportunities [Government Code section 65583(c)(5)] 

 

A local agency must promote housing opportunities for all persons regardless of 

race, religion, sex, marital status, ancestry, national origin, color, family status, or 

disability. 

 

6. At-Risk Housing [Government Code section 65583(a)(9)] 

 

A local agency must preserve for lower income households the assisted housing 

developments that are at risk of becoming homeless. 

 

The Process to Update Housing Element: 

 

The process to update a Housing Element begins with the State Department of Finance (“DOF”) 

allocating a region’s share of the statewide housing need to SANDAG based on population 

projections and regional population forecasts used in preparing regional transportation plans.  

This is called the RHNA determination.  In turn, SANDAG works among the membership agencies 

to identify the total number of housing units that each jurisdiction must accommodate.  (This is 

called the RHNA Plan, which is the methodology to distribute this need to local agencies.).  Each 

local agency must then create land use plans that accommodate the minimum amounts of 

housing unit goals/allocations.  The Planning Commission received a presentation on this process 

at its April 13, 2021, meeting.   

 

Even though future housing needs and the “fair-share” law is a major component to the Housing 

Element update process, there is much more to it.  In general, a housing element must at least 

include the following components: 

 

1. Existing Needs and Projected Needs Analysis. Existing needs are the number 

of households overpaying for housing, living in overcrowded conditions, or  

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

6 

 

 

special housing needs (such as the elderly or homeless), etc.  Projected needs 

analysis looks at the City’s share of regional housing needs established in the 

RHNA Plan prepared by SANDAG.  Pursuant to Government Code section 

65583, all cities must accommodate their RHNA allocations in their Housing 

Elements by adopting land use plans that accommodate the minimum amounts 

of housing unit goals and RHNA allocations.   

 

2. A Sites Inventory and Analysis.  A sites inventory is a detailed land analysis of 

available sites including specific properties, parcel size and existing conditions, 

availability of infrastructure, and an evaluation of suitability and potential 

development capacity that can be used in addressing the RHNA Allocation 

and/or population growth.  A jurisdiction must have enough land zoned at 

appropriate densities to ensure it can accommodate all of the units in its 

allocation. Cities can do this by identifying vacant land, but can also identify 

occupied sites that are underperforming or are underbuilt.   

 

3. Analysis of Constraints. This includes an evaluation of land use controls, fees 

and exactions, permits and processing procedures, and related impacts on 

housing development.   

 

4. Housing Programs. This addresses various programs to, among other things, 

accommodate the localities share of RHNA, remove or mitigate governmental 

constraints, conserve or improve housing stock, promote fair and equal 

housing.  This also includes a description of what has been learned based on 

the analysis of progress and effectiveness of the previous element.  

 

5. Quantified Objectives. Objectives estimate the number of units by income level 

to be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over a planning period. 

 

The City’s current Housing Element is broken down into three main sections:  1) Introduction, 2) 

Existing Conditions and Analysis of Needs, and 3) Goals and Policies.  The purpose of the 

“Introduction” section is to set the format and organization of the Housing Element.  The draft 

Housing Element includes a purpose statement and an overview of the public participation and 

engagement.  Much of the existing text is outdated and requires an update to reflect current data 

and/or circumstances.  The “Existing Conditions and Analysis of Needs” section assesses the 

factors that affect future housing such as population projections, employment market, household 

characteristics, and special needs groups, just to name a few.  The draft Housing Element also 

lists potential constraints to housing, such as market constraints (e.g., economic factors, land and 

construction costs, financing availability); governmental constraints (e.g., land use controls, 

permit fees); and environmental constraints (seismic safety, flooding, storm water management, 

school and education, fire and emergency services).  This section requires a significant re-write 

mainly because the socio-economic factors and related challenges impacting housing today are 

very different from the factors and challenges experienced during the prior planning period.  Upon  

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

7 

 

 

 

review of the data and information used to develop this section, virtually all of the text is outdated 

and the section needed to be completely re-written.  The “Goals and Policies” section covers the 

policy framework and the actions that the City intends to implement to address a number of 

important housing-related issues.  This section sets the direction for how the City proposes to 

address its current and future housing needs, as well as many other housing related issues.  Many 

of the 2012 goals and policies are still relevant today, so the text changes proposed to this section 

are minimal and are largely intended to reflect changes in state law/circumstances and new 

program requirements to implement during the 2021-2029 planning period.  These programs are 

being proposed to show how the City intends to implement the established goals and policies 

over the planning period.   

 

Penalties for Non-Compliance: 

 

The intent of state law is to set forth principles to guide and facilitate the improvement and 

development of housing to improve regional mobility and job housing balance that reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions.  When a local government fails to adopt an updated Housing Element 

by the deadline, or adopts an element that does not comply with the law, the city or county is 

regarded as noncompliant and is subject to penalties.  These penalties include: 

 

1. Legal action – the City may be sued if its Housing Element is not compliant 

with state law.  If such a lawsuit is successful (i.e., the Housing Element does 

not substantially comply with state law), the Court may order mandatory 

compliance within 120 days; suspend the City’s authority to issue building 

permits or grant zoning changes, variances, or subdivision map approvals; 

and/or intervene directly in the process by approving housing projects. If a City 

loses or settles a lawsuit, the City may also be forced to pay substantial 

attorney’s fees to the prevailing party in addition to its own costs and fees. 

 

2. Financing impacts – noncompliant communities are also ineligible for certain 

affordable housing programs administered by HCD. Also, a jurisdiction may 

not qualify for many grants available through SANDAG or other state programs 

that require good standing with HCD. 

 

3. Carryover provision – state law mandates that previously identified housing 

needs not accommodated by a jurisdiction in one planning period be carried 

over to the next planning cycle. 

 

4. More Frequent Update Cycles - State law requires regular updates to the 

Housing Element to ensure relevancy and accuracy. These updates are 

required every eight years.  The time from one update to the next is called a 

housing cycle.  All San Diego jurisdictions are in the fifth housing cycle that 

began in 2013 and will end in 2021. The upcoming sixth Housing Element cycle  

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

8 

 

 

will cover the next eight-year planning period (2021-2029).  To comply with 

state law, the City Council needs to adopt an updated element by August 15, 

2021.  Following adoption, and as a final step, the updated element will require 

state review and certification.  If Escondido does not meet this deadline, the 

City would need to prepare a new Housing Element in just four years and could 

face fines and penalties until it approves the update.  In addition, without an 

approved housing plan, the risk of housing-related lawsuits and challenges to 

the city’s entire General Plan increase. 

 

Having an approved Housing Element avoids these significant problems, helps maintain local 

control over land use decisions, and makes Escondido eligible for state grants to help fund 

infrastructure improvements.  As the city’s Housing Element is required to be regularly revised 

pursuant to a statutory schedule, the update process will provide housing and land use strategies 

that closely reflect changing local needs, resources, and conditions. For example, the Housing 

Element update can provide a mechanism to adopt new efficient land-use strategies such as infill, 

mixed-use, or revitalization; or address climate change and the reduction of greenhouse gas 

emissions. Therefore, the Housing Element Update process will most likely result in changes to 

the Land Use and Circulation Elements, as well as new implementing ordinances.  Altogether, 

this planning process will ultimately address how (and if) the city can accommodate growth and 

mobility demands while enhancing the city’s community character and quality of life. 

 

E. FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

 

The action before the Planning Commission is an overview of the next steps toward developing 

HCIS work program in order for the HCIS to be considered by both the Planning Commission and 

City Council for action in late summer 2021. There is no fiscal impact associated with this 

overview.  The cost associated with the preparation of the report is included within the Community 

Development Department budget.     

 

HCD has supported the HCIS planning effort by awarding the City $310,000 through an SB 2 

Planning Grant; and $500,000 through a Local Early Action Planning (“LEAP”) Grant Program.  

Preparing the draft Housing Element, Sector Feasibility Study, and East Valley Specific Plan and 

facilitating additional public outreach of the HCIS will be covered by the existing Community 

Development Department budget, which was recently augmented to account for planning grant 

awards.   

 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: 

 

The City must prepare an environmental document prior to adopting the Housing Element Update 

and the East Valley Specific Plan portions of the HCIS.  The City, as the lead agency, is preparing 

a Program-level Environmental Impact Report (“Program EIR”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 

section 15168.  A Program EIR examines the environmental impacts of an overall area that 

contain a series of subsequent, related actions that can be characterized as one large project  

 



Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 
 

9 

 

 

(“Project”).  This type of EIR focuses on the changes in the environment that would result from 

implementation of the overall Project, including development of land uses and transportation 

systems identified in the Project, as well as other infrastructure required to serve the Project.   

 

The HCIS EIR will serve as the environmental review document for subsequent activities in the 

Project.  This means that the HCIS would include comprehensive and thorough analysis and 

mitigation to help accelerate future housing production and assist developers by streamlining the 

environmental review and permitting process for individual housing projects or mixed use projects.  

Consistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15168(c), the City will review subsequent activities to 

determine whether a subsequent activity is within the scope of the Project covered by the Program 

EIR or whether an additional environmental document must be prepared. 

 

The City, as the lead agency, has prepared a Notice of Preparation (“NOP”) and circulated it to 

public agencies and interested parties (including the general public) on February 11, 2021, 

(SCH No. 2021020263) for the Project.  The NOP provided an introduction to the Project.  

Comments on the scope of the Environmental Impact Report were requested by March 12, 2021, 

consistent with the requirements of the CEQA Guidelines.  Comments received on the NOP will 

be included in the Draft EIR. 

 

This agenda item specifically engages the Planning Commission in the planning process to learn 

more about the Project as part of a series of informational presentations and status report 

updates.  General discussion pertaining to the HCIS does not have a legally binding effect on any 

possible future discretionary action.  Public input received and technical information prepared 

during the process will be utilized in preparing the EIR to analyze the possible effects of the HCIS. 

The proposed approach to conducting the process for preparing the HCIS, including the Housing 

Element Update and East Valley Specific Plan portions of the work program, considers 

environmental factors, such as climate change and coordinated planning of land use, 

transportation, and housing, pursuant to Government Code section 65080. 

 

G. PUBLIC INPUT: 

 

The City is undertaking this public involvement process to help engage residents, businesses, 

and other community members in the development of three different housing studies and plans.  

On June 10, 2020, the City Council considered and endorsed a Public Participation Plan 

(“Outreach Plan”) and associated timeline to involve the community.  Among other things, the 

proposed work plan and schedule proposes a series of meetings with the Planning Commission 

to discuss different aspects and components related to the HCIS.  The Outreach Plan can be 

accessed through the link provided below:   

 

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCI

SPPPJune102020.pdf. 

 

 

 

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/EastValleySpecificPlan2020/HCISPPPJune102020.pdf


Project Name: HCIS  
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 27, 2021 

10 

The City has also developed a periodic review page that can be accessed online at the link below 

to help the public access key documents.  Informational reports and data generated during the 

review will be available for the public to view online: 

https://www.escondido.org/hcis.aspx. 

H. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION:

Receive report and file. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Public Comments

https://www.escondido.org/hcis.aspx


From: Laura Hunter
To: Joe M. Garcia; Consuelo Martinez; Mike Strong; Joanne Tasher
Cc: Jeffrey Epp
Subject: [EXT] Sierra Club NCG comments on two Housing Element topics for consideration
Date: Monday, April 19, 2021 4:36:54 PM
Attachments: 19APR2021_NCG_to AdHocHousing_PC_HousingElementReview.pdf

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender email address AND know the content is safe.

Dear Housing Ad-Hoc Committee Councilmembers Garcia and Martinez and Planning
Commissioners,
Please find attached the first in a series of comment letters related to the Housing Element
and related issues that we would like to provide for your consideration.
We request an opportunity to meet with each of you about these important topics.
Please contact me if you are willing to have a zoom meeting to discuss this.  I can be
reached at laurahunter744@gmail.com or 619-997-9983
Thank you for your consideration,
Laura Hunter, Chair
Sierra Club NCG Conservation Committee

ATTACHMENT 1

11

mailto:laurahunter744@gmail.com
mailto:jgarcia@escondido.org
mailto:cmartinez@escondido.org
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org
mailto:jtasher@escondido.org
mailto:Jepp@escondido.org
mailto:laurahunter744@gmail.com



 
 


1 | P a g e  
 


 
 
 
 
 


April 19, 2021 
 
Ad-Hoc Council Housing Subcommittee 
Planning Commission 
City of Escondido 
Via Email    
 
RE:  NCG recommendations for Draft 2021 Escondido Housing Element  
 
Dear Councilmembers Garcia and Martinez and Commissioners: 


Sierra Club North County Group (NCG) appreciates the creation of the Ad-Hoc City Council Housing 


Committee and the interest of the Planning Commission to take a deeper review of housing issues in 


Escondido and the Draft Housing Element.  NCG has previously submitted extensive comments in 


the planning stages on both the proposed Housing Element and the East Valley Specific Plan Update 


and a letter late last month when the new draft was discussed. We intend to submit additional 


comments on a variety of topics related to the Housing Element. 


Now that there is time to focus on some key changes that should be made to the draft and strategies 


of the city.  We would like to focus in this first letter on two important actions in this letter.  To 


summarize, we support the following actions: 


a. Adopt an inclusionary housing ordinance or other requirement which will result in a 
requirement to construct 10-20% affordable units with market rate housing like many 
other cities require;   


b. Policy to prohibit housing be built within 500 feet of a freeway.  Housing within 1,000 
feet should be required to include mitigation measures outlined in the CARB Technical 
Advisory. 


 


Rationale 


There are a couple realities that should be acknowledged so that strategies can be based on 
resolving these challenges.    


1. Escondido has not produced adequate affordable housing with its ‘voluntary, 
developer-driven’ approach.  We need an affordable housing requirement. 


 
While the city may have designated adequate land for very-low and low income housing, what 


matters is the production of it.  This failure of actual production of affordable and workforce 


housing is why we have a significant housing problem in Escondido. 



https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/SierraClub_NCG_Housing-Element-Escondido_Comments.pdf

https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Final_SierraClub_NCG_EastValleyPlan_Comments.pdf

https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/24MAR2021_NCG_HousingElementCCouncil.pdf





 
 


2 | P a g e  
 


The practice of designation alone or market-driven voluntary strategy has not worked and must be 
strengthened.  


The example of Palomar Heights demonstrates the failure of our current system.  A site zoned for 


over 1,300 units, perfectly located on a transportation corridor, perfect for density, was built far 


under-density and with no guaranteed (deed-restricted) affordable housing.1 If there had been even 


a very modest 10% requirement for affordable units in a project built to the density it was planned, 


the current total would have yielded 135 additional affordable units.  Another example is from the 


April 14, 2021 Planning Commission meeting where a housing development for 120 market-rate 


rentals in an area zoned for 230 was approved. No deed-restricted affordable and barely 50% of the 


planned density for an area on a major transportation corridor. 


Another issue that would be improved by requiring a percentage of housing to be affordable would 


be more inclusion and economic integration of residents.  Without it, we are concerned that 
economic separation of affordable units and market rate units will continue. 


Inclusionary housing policies are a critically important means to increase actually built affordable 
units in an economically inclusive manner. 


A good working definition of inclusionary zoning is,  
 
Local requirement[s] and/or incentive[s] for developers to create below-market rental 
apartments or for-sale homes in connection with the local zoning approval of a proposed 
market-rate development project. Often accompanied by ‘density bonus’ to offset the cost of 
providing the below market-rate units.2 


 


Inclusionary housing is used in hundreds of communities across the country to create units that are 
affordable to lower-income households in new market-rate residential developments. More than 
170 cities and counties in California3 and 900 country-wide4, have inclusionary-housing policies to 
help address affordable-housing needs while advancing equitable-development goals.5 
 


The Local Government Commission lists some benefits of an Inclusionary Ordinance, 
 


A well-designed ordinance can generate numerous benefits for communities seeking to increase 
housing affordability and develop diverse, inclusive neighborhoods. These include:  
 


• More choices for lower-income households about where to live.  
 


 
1 The senior units should not be qualified as affordable units. They are not deed-restricted and, merely by the fact they are 
designated for ‘seniors’, does not mean they will be affordable.  While many seniors live on very limited means, many others 
do not.    
2 Draft National Sierra Club Guidance Document for Smart Growth and Urban Infill 
3 Local Government Commission, Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing Website  
https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/ 
4 Draft National Sierra Club Guidance Document for Smart Growth and Urban Infill 
5 5Local Government Commission, Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing Website  
https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/  



https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/

https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/





 
 


3 | P a g e  
 


• Reduced opposition to affordable housing by producing affordable units within 
communities as they develop, not after. 
 


• Support for compact infill development, reduced sprawl and achievement of local Regional 
Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) targets for all income levels.  
 


• Reduced vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and greenhouse gas emissions by providing people at 
all income levels more opportunities to live closer to work and in transit-rich areas.  
 


• Ensuring that the entire community benefits from a growing economy. Public and private 
investments help create economic growth that raises property values. Inclusionary housing 
helps capture some of the value created by these investments to ensure that the benefits do 
not accrue solely to property owners and helps buffer against displacement pressures by 
ensuring that lower-income residents can remain in the community.  
 


• Reduced segregation and concentration of poverty.  6 
 
Several cities in the County, including San Marcos, already have inclusionary ordinances.  The 
County is developing one now. While Escondido has encouraged affordable housing on a voluntary 
basis, the voluntary, market-drive strategy has not met the need.  
 
Further, the last two projects that have come before the Planning Commission have not proposed 


any affordable housing in spite of the fact that, at least one location, was designated as a RHNA 


location suitable for affordable housing.  To understand the reason for this, we can just look to the 


March 23, 2021 meeting of the Planning Commission.  A 60-unit infill project was proposed for 


South Escondido.  A Commissioner asked why it didn’t include any affordable housing (e.g. all 


market-rate), the answer was that ‘it wasn’t required.’ This is exactly the problem. It would be nice 
if the voluntary effort worked, but it doesn’t. 


We need an affordable housing development requirement, such as an inclusionary ordinance or 
other such measure to effectively address this issue.   


2. Location of housing within 500 feet of a freeway is known to be hazardous 
to human health and should be avoided. 


 
Development locations within 500 feet of a major freeway or heavily trafficked road are hazardous 


for human health and should not be used to house vulnerable residents.  The California Air 


Resources Board (CARB) did a Land Use Guidance document in 2005 and its guidance is clear,  


Avoid siting new sensitive land uses within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads with 100,000 


vehicles/day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles/day. 7  


 
6Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-
content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf  
7AIR QUALITY AND LAND USE HANDBOOK: A COMMUNITY HEALTH PERSPECTIVE, April, 2005 
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf, page 4 



https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf

https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf

https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf





 
 


4 | P a g e  
 


While not a regulation, this guidance is heavily based on extensive science that underpins the 


recommendation and should be adopted as part of good planning.  In fact, the hazard area is 1,000 


feet from a freeway, which would be a more healthful buffer to adopt.  


Then, in 2017, a CalEPA and CARB Technical Advisory was issued which cited evidence that the 


risks were actually higher than the 2005 report found.  It states, 


In spite of past successes and ongoing efforts to improve near roadway air quality in California, 
exposure to traffic pollution is still a concern because pollution concentrations and exposure 
levels near high-volume roadways continue to indicate that there is a lingering public health 
concern. In addition, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) recently 
revised its methodology for risk assessment in order to estimate more accurately the health 
impacts of exposure. This reanalysis has resulted in a revision of cancer risks from 
exposure to toxic air contaminants, including those emitted by transportation-related 
sources, to significantly higher levels… (emphasis added) 
 
These recent studies highlight the importance of protecting at-risk populations/communities 
from traffic emissions and indicate that exposure reduction strategies may be needed to protect 
people that live and spend time in environments that are more than 500 feet from high 
volume roadways.8  (emphasis added) 


 
Further, they found that the air quality concerns will persist even with changes to regulations and 
technology.9   
  
The Advisory does discuss the kind of development and measures that may be appropriate for these 
locations. 


. … In fact, planners and developers may want to consider siting non-sensitive uses and 
developments that will be primarily used and occupied during the daytime—such as 
commercial uses and offices. … commercial and office buildings are often equipped with indoor 
filtration systems that can remove particulates from the air inhaled by building occupants, and 
these buildings are more likely to have permanently closed or sealed windows. This means that, 
when these buildings are sited close to roads, people that spend time in them are less likely to 
breathe harmful pollutants and experience negative health impacts.10 
 


 
8 Technical Advisory, Strategies to Reduce Air Pollution Exposure Near High-Volume Roadways   
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/rd_technical_advisory_final.pdf, page 14 
9 Ibid 
10 Ibid 



https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/rd_technical_advisory_final.pdf





 
 


5 | P a g e  
 


As you can see from these excerpts of housing 
locations in both the North and South City land use 
designations for RHNA site show a significant 
number of areas that are within the 500-foot buffer 
that the Air Resources Board states in its Land Use 
Guidance document is unhealthful.   RNHA sites 
should be selected to respect ARB guidance on air 
quality buffers from freeways. 
 


 


 


In closing, these are two areas that could use significant improvement in the draft 2021 Housing 


Element.  We request that the Ad-Hoc and Planning Commission investigate and recommend the 


following actions. 


NCG Recommendations for addressing healthful and affordable housing. 


To address the issues discussed above, we request the draft Housing Element be revised to include 
the following: 


a. Adopt an inclusionary housing ordinance or other requirement which will result in a 
requirement to construct 10-20% affordable units with market rate housing like many 
other cities require;   


b. Policy to prohibit housing be built within 500 feet of a freeway.  Housing within 1,000 
feet should be required to include mitigation measures outlined in the CARB Technical 
Advisory. 


In the future, we plan to provide additional comments and information on land value recapture 


policies, protection policies for renters, design and implementation of Eco-Planning Districts 


including urban greening, minimum densities, the danger of locating any housing in very-high fire 
risk zones, and other housing related policies.  


Please contact us at conservation@sierraclubncg.org with any questions or for more information. 


Sincerely,  
 
                             
 


Laura Hunter, Chair 
NCG Conservation Committee 
 
cc. City Manager 
 
  



mailto:conservation@sierraclubncg.org





1 | P a g e

April 19, 2021 

Ad-Hoc Council Housing Subcommittee 
Planning Commission 
City of Escondido 
Via Email    

RE:  NCG recommendations for Draft 2021 Escondido Housing Element 

Dear Councilmembers Garcia and Martinez and Commissioners: 

Sierra Club North County Group (NCG) appreciates the creation of the Ad-Hoc City Council Housing 

Committee and the interest of the Planning Commission to take a deeper review of housing issues in 

Escondido and the Draft Housing Element.  NCG has previously submitted extensive comments in 

the planning stages on both the proposed Housing Element and the East Valley Specific Plan Update 

and a letter late last month when the new draft was discussed. We intend to submit additional 

comments on a variety of topics related to the Housing Element. 

Now that there is time to focus on some key changes that should be made to the draft and strategies 

of the city.  We would like to focus in this first letter on two important actions in this letter.  To 

summarize, we support the following actions: 

a. Adopt an inclusionary housing ordinance or other requirement which will result in a
requirement to construct 10-20% affordable units with market rate housing like many
other cities require;

b. Policy to prohibit housing be built within 500 feet of a freeway.  Housing within 1,000
feet should be required to include mitigation measures outlined in the CARB Technical
Advisory.

Rationale 

There are a couple realities that should be acknowledged so that strategies can be based on 
resolving these challenges.    

1. Escondido has not produced adequate affordable housing with its ‘voluntary,
developer-driven’ approach.  We need an affordable housing requirement.

While the city may have designated adequate land for very-low and low income housing, what 

matters is the production of it.  This failure of actual production of affordable and workforce 

housing is why we have a significant housing problem in Escondido. 

Written Communications 
04/27/21 PC Meeting 
Agenda Item No.: I.2ATTACHMENT 1

12

https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/SierraClub_NCG_Housing-Element-Escondido_Comments.pdf
https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Final_SierraClub_NCG_EastValleyPlan_Comments.pdf
https://sierraclubncg.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/24MAR2021_NCG_HousingElementCCouncil.pdf


2 | P a g e

The practice of designation alone or market-driven voluntary strategy has not worked and must be 
strengthened.  

The example of Palomar Heights demonstrates the failure of our current system.  A site zoned for 

over 1,300 units, perfectly located on a transportation corridor, perfect for density, was built far 

under-density and with no guaranteed (deed-restricted) affordable housing.1 If there had been even 

a very modest 10% requirement for affordable units in a project built to the density it was planned, 

the current total would have yielded 135 additional affordable units.  Another example is from the 

April 14, 2021 Planning Commission meeting where a housing development for 120 market-rate 

rentals in an area zoned for 230 was approved. No deed-restricted affordable and barely 50% of the 

planned density for an area on a major transportation corridor. 

Another issue that would be improved by requiring a percentage of housing to be affordable would 

be more inclusion and economic integration of residents.  Without it, we are concerned that 
economic separation of affordable units and market rate units will continue. 

Inclusionary housing policies are a critically important means to increase actually built affordable 
units in an economically inclusive manner. 

A good working definition of inclusionary zoning is, 

Local requirement[s] and/or incentive[s] for developers to create below-market rental 
apartments or for-sale homes in connection with the local zoning approval of a proposed 
market-rate development project. Often accompanied by ‘density bonus’ to offset the cost of 
providing the below market-rate units.2 

Inclusionary housing is used in hundreds of communities across the country to create units that are 
affordable to lower-income households in new market-rate residential developments. More than 
170 cities and counties in California3 and 900 country-wide4, have inclusionary-housing policies to 
help address affordable-housing needs while advancing equitable-development goals.5 

The Local Government Commission lists some benefits of an Inclusionary Ordinance, 

A well-designed ordinance can generate numerous benefits for communities seeking to increase 
housing affordability and develop diverse, inclusive neighborhoods. These include:  

• More choices for lower-income households about where to live.

1 The senior units should not be qualified as affordable units. They are not deed-restricted and, merely by the fact they are 
designated for ‘seniors’, does not mean they will be affordable.  While many seniors live on very limited means, many others 
do not.    
2 Draft National Sierra Club Guidance Document for Smart Growth and Urban Infill 
3 Local Government Commission, Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing Website  
https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/ 
4 Draft National Sierra Club Guidance Document for Smart Growth and Urban Infill 
5 5Local Government Commission, Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing Website  
https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/  

13

https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/
https://www.lgc.org/advancing-inclusionary-housing-policy/


3 | P a g e

• Reduced opposition to affordable housing by producing affordable units within
communities as they develop, not after.

• Support for compact infill development, reduced sprawl and achievement of local Regional
Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) targets for all income levels.

• Reduced vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and greenhouse gas emissions by providing people at
all income levels more opportunities to live closer to work and in transit-rich areas.

• Ensuring that the entire community benefits from a growing economy. Public and private
investments help create economic growth that raises property values. Inclusionary housing
helps capture some of the value created by these investments to ensure that the benefits do
not accrue solely to property owners and helps buffer against displacement pressures by
ensuring that lower-income residents can remain in the community.

• Reduced segregation and concentration of poverty.  6

Several cities in the County, including San Marcos, already have inclusionary ordinances.  The 
County is developing one now. While Escondido has encouraged affordable housing on a voluntary 
basis, the voluntary, market-drive strategy has not met the need.  

Further, the last two projects that have come before the Planning Commission have not proposed 

any affordable housing in spite of the fact that, at least one location, was designated as a RHNA 

location suitable for affordable housing.  To understand the reason for this, we can just look to the 

March 23, 2021 meeting of the Planning Commission.  A 60-unit infill project was proposed for 

South Escondido.  A Commissioner asked why it didn’t include any affordable housing (e.g. all 

market-rate), the answer was that ‘it wasn’t required.’ This is exactly the problem. It would be nice 
if the voluntary effort worked, but it doesn’t. 

We need an affordable housing development requirement, such as an inclusionary ordinance or 
other such measure to effectively address this issue.   

2. Location of housing within 500 feet of a freeway is known to be hazardous
to human health and should be avoided.

Development locations within 500 feet of a major freeway or heavily trafficked road are hazardous 

for human health and should not be used to house vulnerable residents.  The California Air 

Resources Board (CARB) did a Land Use Guidance document in 2005 and its guidance is clear,  

Avoid siting new sensitive land uses within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads with 100,000 

vehicles/day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles/day. 7  

6Meeting California’s Housing Needs: Best Practices for Inclusionary Housing https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-
content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf  
7AIR QUALITY AND LAND USE HANDBOOK: A COMMUNITY HEALTH PERSPECTIVE, April, 2005 
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf, page 4 

14

https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf
https://www.lgc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/inclusionary-factsheet_v2.pdf
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf


4 | P a g e

While not a regulation, this guidance is heavily based on extensive science that underpins the 

recommendation and should be adopted as part of good planning.  In fact, the hazard area is 1,000 

feet from a freeway, which would be a more healthful buffer to adopt.  

Then, in 2017, a CalEPA and CARB Technical Advisory was issued which cited evidence that the 

risks were actually higher than the 2005 report found.  It states, 

In spite of past successes and ongoing efforts to improve near roadway air quality in California, 
exposure to traffic pollution is still a concern because pollution concentrations and exposure 
levels near high-volume roadways continue to indicate that there is a lingering public health 
concern. In addition, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) recently 
revised its methodology for risk assessment in order to estimate more accurately the health 
impacts of exposure. This reanalysis has resulted in a revision of cancer risks from 
exposure to toxic air contaminants, including those emitted by transportation-related 
sources, to significantly higher levels… (emphasis added) 

These recent studies highlight the importance of protecting at-risk populations/communities 
from traffic emissions and indicate that exposure reduction strategies may be needed to protect 
people that live and spend time in environments that are more than 500 feet from high 
volume roadways.8  (emphasis added) 

Further, they found that the air quality concerns will persist even with changes to regulations and 
technology.9   

The Advisory does discuss the kind of development and measures that may be appropriate for these 
locations. 

. … In fact, planners and developers may want to consider siting non-sensitive uses and 
developments that will be primarily used and occupied during the daytime—such as 
commercial uses and offices. … commercial and office buildings are often equipped with indoor 
filtration systems that can remove particulates from the air inhaled by building occupants, and 
these buildings are more likely to have permanently closed or sealed windows. This means that, 
when these buildings are sited close to roads, people that spend time in them are less likely to 
breathe harmful pollutants and experience negative health impacts.10 

8 Technical Advisory, Strategies to Reduce Air Pollution Exposure Near High-Volume Roadways  
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/rd_technical_advisory_final.pdf, page 14 
9 Ibid 
10 Ibid 

15

https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/rd_technical_advisory_final.pdf


5 | P a g e

As you can see from these excerpts of housing 
locations in both the North and South City land use 
designations for RHNA site show a significant 
number of areas that are within the 500-foot buffer 
that the Air Resources Board states in its Land Use 
Guidance document is unhealthful.   RNHA sites 
should be selected to respect ARB guidance on air 
quality buffers from freeways. 

In closing, these are two areas that could use significant improvement in the draft 2021 Housing 

Element.  We request that the Ad-Hoc and Planning Commission investigate and recommend the 

following actions. 

NCG Recommendations for addressing healthful and affordable housing. 

To address the issues discussed above, we request the draft Housing Element be revised to include 
the following: 

a. Adopt an inclusionary housing ordinance or other requirement which will result in a
requirement to construct 10-20% affordable units with market rate housing like many
other cities require;

b. Policy to prohibit housing be built within 500 feet of a freeway.  Housing within 1,000
feet should be required to include mitigation measures outlined in the CARB Technical
Advisory.

In the future, we plan to provide additional comments and information on land value recapture 

policies, protection policies for renters, design and implementation of Eco-Planning Districts 

including urban greening, minimum densities, the danger of locating any housing in very-high fire 
risk zones, and other housing related policies.  

Please contact us at conservation@sierraclubncg.org with any questions or for more information. 

Sincerely, 

Laura Hunter, Chair 
NCG Conservation Committee 

cc. City Manager

16

mailto:conservation@sierraclubncg.org


Agenda Item No.: I.3 
Date:  April 27, 2021 

PROJECT NUMBER / NAME:  Commission Annual Work Plan 

REQUEST: Prepare the Commission’s Annual Work Plan 

LOCATION: N/A 

APN / APNS:  N/A 

GENERAL PLAN / ZONING: N/A 

APPLICANT:  Community Development 

Department 

PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE:  

Mike Strong, Director of Community 

Development 

DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS REQUESTED:  N/A 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  The Planning Commission initiated the preparation of the Work Plan at its 

meeting on April 13, 2021. 

PROJECT PLANNER:  Mike Strong, Director of Community Development 

CEQA RECOMMENDATION:  Not a project under CEQA, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15378(b)(5). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Prepare the Commission’s Annual Work Plan 

REQUESTED ACTION:  Provide direction to staff 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING REQUIRED:   ☐ YES ☒ NO 

REPORT APPROVALS:            ☒ Mike Strong, Community Development Director

☐ Adam Finestone, City Planner



Project Name: Planning Commission Agenda and Work Plan 
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 13, 2021 
 

 

 

 

A. BACKGROUND: 

At its April 13, 2021 meeting, the Planning Commission briefly discussed the manner in which 

items could be placed on future Planning Commission Agendas and directed staff to initiate the 

preparation of a Commission Annual Work Plan.   

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The primary purpose of the April 27, 2021 meeting is for the Planning Commission to conduct a 

kick-off discussion on existing work programs or known City Council priorities and to consider any 

major future agenda topics that might result in new work program ideas. The Planning 

Commission’s annual report and work plan would become the manner in which the Planning 

Commission would comprehensively provide some direction to staff and establish some dialogue 

with the City Council about various work programs that could help implement the General Plan 

and Specific Plans, or improvement-related initiatives.  As of this writing, it is anticipated that the 

Planning Commission would finalize the ideas and prioritize the work programs with specific 

metrics, priorities, and timelines at a future meeting.  The Planning Commission would need to 

adopt its annual report and work plan to establish clear expectations on timeline, interim 

milestones, budget resources, and specific deliverables.   

 

The City Council would ultimately be responsible for approving a work plan and may consider the 

Commission’s annual report in carrying out its decision-making, implementing policy directives, 

or finalizing funding strategies for subsequent fiscal years.  The Commission Annual Work Plan 

provides an opportunity for the City Council to evaluate and ensure continuous improvement to 

the City’s land use and regulatory framework.  It is important to note that an annual report and 

work plan would likely be revised each year or on a rolling two-year basis to ensure the proposed 

actions are contemporary and respond to changing circumstances.   

 

C. SUPPLEMENTAL DETAILS OF REQUEST: 

 

The Escondido Planning Commission was established pursuant to Escondido Municipal Code 

section 20-1.  The Planning Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council on 

land use policy planning matters, which guide the future development of the City. The Planning 

Commission has final approval authority on certain cases and recommends action to the City 

Council on others.  Among other responsibilities, the Planning Commission assists the City 

Council in the formulation of policies and ordinances that implement the General Plan, such as 

amendments to the Zoning Code, the adoption of new code sections, and changes to the existing 

zoning text and maps.  

  

The scope of the Commission’s powers and duties are determined by the City Council, the 

Escondido Municipal Code, and state law (particularly the Planning and Zoning Laws in the 

Government Code).  All matters of parliamentary procedure not specifically governed by the 

Planning Commission By-Laws (per Planning Commission Resolution No. 2018-01) or otherwise 

required by law are governed by the current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order. 

2



Project Name: Planning Commission Agenda and Work Plan 
Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: April 13, 2021 

D. ANALYSIS:

At its April 13, 2021 meeting, the Planning Commission briefly discussed the manner in which to 

initiate the preparation of the Commission Annual Work Plan.  The discussion resulted in a request 

for Commissioners to send preliminary recommendations to City staff and the City Attorney’s 

Office representative, and those communications would be included within the April 27, 2021 

agenda packet.  Comments received from individual Planning Commissioners are provided in 

Attachment 1.  Existing work programs or known City Council priorities that relate to the 

Community Development Department are provided in Attachment 2.  

The April 27, 2021 Planning Commission meeting consists of Commissioner discussion and 

direction.  The April 27, 2021 Agenda Report and PowerPoint presentation will be used to facilitate 

the discussion of this item.   

E. FISCAL ANALYSIS:

There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with this item. Future funding needed to support the 

preparation of a work plan involves minor staff support and can be incorporated into the existing 

Community Development Department budget.  Implementation of a work plan, if created, may 

require resources to accomplish the plan.  Those resources will be identified and considered 

during future budget preparations.  The Planning Commission understands that staff resources 

are limited, which may necessitate some level of prioritization.   

F. ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS:

The primary purpose of this agenda item is to prepare an annual report and work plan.  The 

content of this agenda report is provided for informational purposes only, and is “not a project” 

under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15378(b)(5), which excludes from the definition of “project” “[o]rganizational or administrative 

activities of governments that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the 

environment.”   

G. PUBLIC INPUT:

None. 

H. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION:

Provide direction to City staff as appropriate.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

1- Comments received from individual Planning Commissioners

2- Draft 2021/22 Commission Work Plan, dated April 21, 2021

3



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Rick Paul
Mike Strong
Kurt G. Whitman
[EXT] Agenda & Work Program 
Wednesday, April 14, 2021 10:19:36 AM

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender email address AND know the content is safe.

Hi Mike,

For consideration in the annual work program:

Green Infrastructure Plan Vs Park Master Plan Vs Project Open Space requirements.
Including funding mechanisms.

Requirements for Commercial space in mixed use projects. Commercial space
requirements for the entire City.

Comprehensive Transportation Plan

Parking requirement standards including minimum and maximum allowed. Impervious
vs porous surfaces. Interrelationship with the Comprehensive Transportation Plan.

Review Signage requirements/standards

Review Trash Enclosure requirements in light of recent State recycling requirements.

Just an agenda item:

Will the Planning Commission receive a presentation on the VMT/Traffic Impact
Analysis Guidelines before the City Council does?

Thanks
Rick

ATTACHMENT 1

4

mailto:rickpaul01@yahoo.com
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org
mailto:kwhitman@escondido.org


From: Herminia Ledesma
To: Mike Strong
Subject: [EXT] Re: Commissioner Work Plan
Date: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 12:28:02 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender email address AND know the content is safe.

Hi Mike,
Thanks for the reminder. I was out of town and just got back in, so I am playing a bit of catch
up.

Here is what I would like included:
1. Community engagement- keeping an eye to inclusivity whether that's project based or
regarding general engagement of planning commission activities.

-An example would be: When appropriate, can we collect information from folks who
use the space, going to them and incorporating creative strategies?
-Deliverable would be recommendation to council, and input into methods by the commission

2. The second would be a more general recommendation on starting "inside out". Are there
any updates that need to be made to codes for example? Can we look to creating small
changes that create more streamlined efforts? What are the work programs and efforts already
ongoing?
-Deliverable would be recommendation to council

3. Exploring training and funding opportunities.

4. Ensuring we have an evaluation mechanism, as simple as reviewing the work plan every
quarter.

Looking forward to supporting this process.

-H

On Tue, Apr 20, 2021 at 12:56 PM Mike Strong <mstrong@escondido.org> wrote:

Herminia,

Just a reminder to send me any comments that you want to have included in the agenda
packet for the work plan discussion on April 27th.

Thanks!

5

mailto:hermi.r.ledesma@gmail.com
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org






Mike Strong

Director of Community Development

Community Development Department | City of Escondido

Direct: 760-839-4556

www.escondido.org

For local information and daily updates on COVID-19,
please visit San Diego County Coronavirus. To
receive updates via text, send COSD COVID19 to 468-
311.

6

http://www.escondido.org/
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/coronavirus.html
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/coronavirus.html
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/coronavirus.html


From: Stan Weiler
To: Mike Strong; Kurt G. Whitman; Joanne Tasher
Subject: [EXT] Planning Commission Work Plan
Date: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 3:01:08 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.jpg
image003.png

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender email address AND know the content is safe.

During our last PC meeting, the Commission discussed having a work program.  Below are a couple
of items that I wanted to add to the list. 

1. Review and or discuss code changes for the most common requested exemptions – grading,
open space, parking
2. Overview of all Planning documents that will be up for review in the near future and the
Planning Commissioners role related to community outreach and workshops to inform the Planning
Commission of the changes being proposed.
3. Discussion regarding Planning Law and Housing Law as it relates to the potential legal
ramifications regarding how the Commission votes.  My concern is specifically regarding
affordable/inclusionary housing.  I have seen on two occasions, and I suspect there will be more in
the future, where projects that do not provide affordable/inclusionary housing are getting a “no”
vote presumably because there is no deed restricted affordable housing component.  It seems to me
(and this is where I need to be educated) that a legal issue could arise if the Commission actually
denied a project because the project does not provide something that is not a requirement in the
code.  Granted, in practical terms, a denial could move forward to city council and city council could
over turn the Planning Commission decision.  However, it would seem more appropriate if we were
better informed as a Commission regarding our legal responsibilities.
Best Regards,

L. Stan Weiler, AICP - Principal
HWL – Howes Weiler Landy – Planning, Engineering & Surveying
2888 Loker Avenue East, Suite 217
Carlsbad, CA 92010
P: 760.929.2288  Ext. 402
C: 760.801.4678
HWL-PE.COM

PLEASE NOTE: In response to the State-issued stay at home order and in order to protect the health
and well-being of our staff and clients, HWL – Planning & Engineering has implemented remote
working for all staff members so our work systems can remain operational and we continue to

7

mailto:sweiler@hwl-pe.com
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org
mailto:kwhitman@escondido.org
mailto:jtasher@escondido.org
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.hwl-pe.com%2f&c=E,1,DZSU7GwcysHjlpE4ZzWCTVRiIHNLOJPLsnb9h3vfpBd1xl9VCHvBAfHzPkJgJ0USoXFouZuJtzuaq8Tak2iDFR46oznEGswSfdW64I0t8Tpyj2TJ&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.hwl-pe.com%2f&c=E,1,AOj-IJhYrFIUFZkQLvyvL3YoToxgvNwjk6vqsopb-dInbfwwacmVK7768m1Ed6Iugwp7aWDkV2CcmabB_gdUG9ZREqMXBCXQ_0syJXF_zVBs&typo=1

n.

HOWES | WEILER [LANDY
PLANNING & EHGINEERING













perform for our clients. Thank you for your understanding of the challenges brought by this situation.
We appreciate your continued support.

8

https://www.linkedin.com/company/howes-weiler-and-associates/about/


From: Ingrid Rainey
To: Mike Strong
Subject: [EXT] Recommendations
Date: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 3:34:37 PM

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender email address AND know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. Mike Strong:

Here are my recommendations:

1. Early project awareness and project consultation for comprehensive planning efforts
under the planning commission purview.

2. Review and discuss code changes that will happen in the near future.

My aforementioned recommendations are to engage the planning commission earlier in the
process. Therefore, nothing is rushed and the planning commission can make more informed
decisions.

Thank you,

Ingrid Rainey | Managing Partner

Tel. 858.345.9400  |  ingrid@raineylawpc.com
Mailing Address: 16870 West Bernardo Drive, Suite 400, San Diego, CA 92127
raineylawpc.com |
NOTICE: This E-Mail transmission (and/or the documents accompanying it) is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may
contain information protected by the attorney-client privilege, the attorney work product doctrine or other applicable privileges or
confidentiality laws or regulations. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not review, use, copy, disclose or distribute this
message or any of the information contained in this message to anyone. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the
sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of this message and any attachments. 

9

mailto:ingrid@raineylawpc.com
mailto:mstrong@escondido.org
tel:949.842.5278
mailto:Ingrid@raineylawpc.com
http://www.raineylawpc.com/


1 

Escondido Planning Commission Workplan items for consideration  (Kate Barba)  April, 2021 

1. Engage with City staff and Escondido communities to complete a Green Infrastructure Plan for the City

(see overview, rationale in Apr 13 agenda packet)

2. Assure development of an inclusionary housing ordinance, related policies and vision as an integral update to the

Housing Element #6 that reflects consideration of equity and EJ principles, results in a real increase in affordable

housing; and enables integrated market rate and affordable housing projects to improve quality of life for all

residents.

3. Consciously Integrate equity and environmental justice as a consideration in land use planning and decision-making.

While the overview from the CA Adaptation Planning Guide below targets climate resilience planning, considerations

of procedural, distributional and structural equity are applicable to land use planning across sectors.

 Create a standard review process for City planners to utilize in revising Specific Area Plans; reviewing new

projects and for Planning Commissioners to consider in project review and public hearings.

The CA Adaptation Planning guide does not identify “equity and environmental justice” as a separate climate adaptation 

sector, but instead looks at it as an overarching topic that should be integrated as applicable into all eleven of its adaptation 

sectors.  

The environmental justice-related requirements and programs discussed in the APG and the kinds of adaptation strategies 

identified therein are more likely to be effective if proper attention is given to procedural equity ahead of any policy or 

program decisions. That begins with planners and public officials acknowledging the past inequities and the role their agencies 

may have played in perpetuating them, whether intentionally or not. Responses to current conditions need to be designed 

to address local conditions, based on an understanding of both the vulnerabilities and the underutilized assets of the 

communities in question. Residents of these communities (and non-resident members in the case of tribal communities), as 

well as local leaders and institutions, must have the opportunity to be integrally involved in planning to improve climate 

resilience. That includes restructuring the policies and procedures governing allocation of infrastructure and other resources. 

Given the social and economic constraints which burden these communities, agencies need to make extraordinary efforts to 

engage with the residents and ensure that climate resilience planning considers their input and priorities. This may require 

extensive efforts to gain residents’ trust through respectful and transparent interaction; holding meetings at times and in 

locations convenient for the residents (including virtual meetings by teleconference) and having them co-hosted by respected 

community leaders; facilitating participation by providing childcare, transit vouchers, and food; tailoring communications 

methods to the circumstances of the particular community; providing financial resources to enable residents to conduct their 

own research into community needs and priorities; and allowing more time than usual for the process to be completed. In 

the end, it also may require agencies to accept community preferences for what issues to prioritize and what adaptation 

strategies to implement, even when those run counter to the preferences of agency policy makers and planners. Without 

such extensive efforts, carried out consistently over a long period of time, the symbiotic goals of environmental justice and 

regional resilience are unlikely to be achieved. 

Ensuring distributional equity requires not merely distributing new resources and/or burdens equally but giving 

disadvantaged communities greater resources and relieving them of more burdens in order to balance the inequities imposed 

on them historically, that is, establishing a “level playing field.” This may take the form of new/upgraded educational facilities, 

larger investments in storm drains to avert flooding, tree cover to provide shade and reduce ambient temperature, and/or 

relocation of facilities threatened by sea level rise. 

10



2 

Consideration of structural equity may mean removing existing hazardous land uses and avoiding locating new ones in such 

communities, along with improving the social and economic conditions, e.g., high unemployment and poor educational 

opportunities, that contribute to making these communities more vulnerable in the first place. 

11



 

ATTACHMENT 2 

Draft 2021/22 Commission Work Plan (April 21, 2021) 

 

 
Project Name Brief Description Deliverable 

Council 
Authorized 

(Y/N) 

State 
Mandate 

 (Y/N) 

CAP Related 
Implementation 

(Y/N) 

Status and Program 
Timeline 

Budget Required 
Funded 
(Y/N) 

Planning Commission 
Role 

1 Business Recovery 
Ordinance  

Evaluate the City’s 
regulatory business relief 
measures and determine if 
any measures should be 
effective on a more 
permanent basis 

Zoning Code 
Amendment(s) or 
Specific Plan 
Amendment(s) 

Yes No No  In development 

 Timeline: 3 to 4 
months 

 Est. Summer 2021 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

2 Downtown Specific 
Plan Ground Floor 
Retail Amendment  

Evaluate the ground floor 
retail requirements in the 
downtown specific plan and 
develop recommendations 
to remove the use 
requirement if it is not 
desired for a key pedestrian 
activity area 

Specific Plan 
Amendment 

Yes No  No  In development 

 Timeline: 6 to 8 
months 

 Est. Summer 2021 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

3 Annual Omnibus 
Code Clean-Up 

Amendments to various 
sections of the Municipal 
and Zoning Codes to address 
recent changes in State law, 
to provide clarity in our 
regulations, and to correct 
errors 

Zoning Code 
Amendment(s) 

Yes Yes No  In development  

 Timelines: 4 to 6 
months 

 Est. Summer 2021 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

4 Comprehensive 
Density Bonus 
Ordinance Update 

Amendment to Article 67 of 
the Zoning Code to 
incorporate recent changes 
in State and to resolve other 
conflicts 

Zoning Code 
Amendment 

No Yes No  In development 

 Timeline: 4 to 6 
months 

 Est. Summer 2021 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

5 Hotel Conversion 
Ordinance  

Amendment to various 
section of the Municipal and 
Zoning Codes to address site 
and building design related 
issues associated with hotel 
conversions  

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

No No No  In development 

 Timeline: 6 to 8 
months 

 Est. Summer/Fall 
2021 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

6 Housing Element 
Update 

Update of the City’s goals, 
policies, and programs to 
promote the maintenance, 
improvement, and 
development of housing 
opportunities 

General Plan 
Amendment 

Yes Yes No  In development 

 Timeline: 14 to 18 
months 

 Est. Fall 2021 

$118,000 plus EIR 
costs 

Yes  Informational study 
sessions 

 Public Hearing(s) 

12



 
Project Name Brief Description Deliverable 

Council 
Authorized 

(Y/N) 

State 
Mandate 

 (Y/N) 

CAP Related 
Implementation 

(Y/N) 

Status and Program 
Timeline 

Budget Required 
Funded 
(Y/N) 

Planning Commission 
Role 

7 Sector Feasibility 
Study 

Development Cost/Revenue 
analysis to inform the 
Housing Element update and 
the East Valley Specific Plan 

Informational 
report 

Yes No No  In development  

 Timeline: 14 to 18 
months 

 Est. Fall 2021 

$45,000  Yes  Informational study 
sessions 

8 East Valley Specific 
Plan 

New rezoning program to 
accommodate future 
housing needs and the 
appropriate densities 

Specific Plan 
adoption 

Yes Yes No  In development  

 Timeline: 14 to 18 
months 

 Est. Fall 2021 

$147,000 plus EIR 
costs 

Yes  Informational study 
sessions 

 Public Hearing(s) 

9 Building and Permit 
Processing Guide 

Collateral material and 
marketing material overview 
of City development services 
and how to process land use 
development projects 

Informational 
report 

No No No  In development 

 Timeline: 6 to 8 
months 

 Est. Fall/Winter 
2021 

None N/A  Receive and file 

10 EV Parking 
Ordinance 

Adopt standards for EV 
charging stations in new 
multi-family and commercial 
developments and in single-
family model homes 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 

 Timeline: 3 to 4 
months 

 Est. Winter 
2021/22 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

11 TDM Ordinance Amendments to the Zoning 
Code to require 
transportation demand 
management practices in 
new non-residential 
developments.  

Zoning Code 
Amendment 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 

 Timeline: 6 to 8 
months 

 Est. Winter 
2021/22 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

12 Alternatively-
Fueled Water 
Heater Ordinance 

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code) to 
require the installation of 
electric water heaters In new 
residential developments 
and significant remodels 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 

 Timeline: 3 to 4 
months 

 Est. Winter 
2021/22 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

13 Electric Cooking 
Appliance 
Ordinance 

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code)to 
require electric cooking 
appliances in all new multi-
family development and 
significant remodels 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 

 Timeline: 3 to 4 
months 

 Est. Winter 
2021/22 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

14 Net Zero Energy 
Reach Ordinance 

Amendment to the local 
Building Code (Chapter 6 of 
the Municipal Code) to 
require all new non-
residential development to 
achieve net zero energy  

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated 

 Timeline: 3 to 4 
months 

 Est. Winter 
2021/22 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

13



 
Project Name Brief Description Deliverable 

Council 
Authorized 

(Y/N) 

State 
Mandate 

 (Y/N) 

CAP Related 
Implementation 

(Y/N) 

Status and Program 
Timeline 

Budget Required 
Funded 
(Y/N) 

Planning Commission 
Role 

15 Annual Progress 
Report for 2021 

Annual report of General 
Plan and CAP 
implementation 

Informational 
report 

N/A Yes Yes  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 2 to 3 
months 

 Est. Spring 2022 

None N/A  Receive and file 

16 Comprehensive 
Nonconforming 
Ordinance Update 

Amendment to Article 61 of 
the Zoning Code to update 
the standards and 
requirements for 
nonconforming uses and 
structures 

Zoning Code 
Amendment 

No No No  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 8 to 12 
months 

 Est. Summer/Fall 
2022 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

17 Pre-Approved ADU 
Plans 

Develop sets of pre-
approved floor plans to help 
incentivize new accessory 
dwelling unit production 

Special study Yes No No  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 12 to 18 
months 

 Est. Summer/Fall 
2022 

$70,000 to 
$100,000 

Yes  Receive and file 

18 Comprehensive 
Sign Ordinance 
Update 

Amendment to Article 66 of 
the Zoning Code to resolve 
conflicts with first 
amendment rights and 
standards for signage 

Zoning Code 
Amendment 

No Yes No  Not initiated 
Timeline: 18 
months 

 Est. Fall 2022 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

19 Landscape 
Ordinance Update 

Amendment to Article 62 of 
the Zoning Code to reduce 
water consumption, to 
install greywater and rain 
barrel systems in new single-
family homes and to create 
new landscaping standards 
as required by the CAP, such 
as cool roofs on multi-family 
projects 

Municipal Code 
and Zoning Code 
Amendments 

N/A No Yes  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 8 to 12 
months 

 Est. Fall 2022 

None N/A  Public Hearing(s) 

20 Open Space 
standards Review 
and Ordinance 
update 

Evaluate the open space 
standards in the downtown 
specific plan and develop 
recommendations to right-
size the requirements and 
incorporate new strategies 
to incorporate green space 
in new projects 

Special study and 
Specific Plan 
Amendment 

Yes No No  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 12 to 16 
months 

 Est. Fall/Winter 
2022 

$40,000 to 
$60,000 

Yes  Public Hearing(s) 

21 Downtown Parking 
Study and 
Ordinance Update 

Develop a parking 
management plan and 
update off-street parking 
standards in the downtown 
area 

Special study and 
Specific Plan 
Amendment 

Yes No Yes  Not initiated  

 Timeline: 16 to 24 
months 

 Est. Winter/Spring 
2023 

$75,000 to 
$125,000 

Yes  Public Hearing(s) 

 

14


	PA 04.27.21.pdf
	PC Minutes 04.13.21.pdf
	4.27.21 Location map.pdf
	Writt Comm from Laura Hunter - clarify comments to communicate with PC for packet.pdf
	Stumbo Appeal SR & Attachments.pdf
	Planning Commission SR_Stumbo Appeal_04.14.21 mds_kgw_ag.pdf
	Appeal Attachment 1, EFD case file (Case No. FWE2019-0027).pdf
	Appeal Attachment 2, Code Enforcement case file (Case No. C20-4286).pdf
	Appeal Attachment 3, Property Maintenance Ordinance.pdf
	Appeal Attachment 4, Robin L. Stumbo Notice of Appeal.pdf
	Appeal Attachment 5 NOE.pdf
	Appeal Attachment 6 Reso No 2021-03 Appeal ag mds.pdf

	4.27.2021 HCIS Work Study SR & Attachment.pdf
	4.27.2021 HCIS Work Study SR.pdf
	HCIS Item I.2 Attachment 1.pdf
	Email from Laura Hunter - Item I.2 PC Mtg 4.27.21 - Sierra Club NCG comments on two Housing Element topics for consideration.pdf
	Current business Item I.2 HCIS _NCG_to AdHocHousing_PC_HousingElementReview.pdf


	4.27.2021 Work Plan SR & Attachments.pdf
	4.27.2021 Work Plan_kgw.pdf
	Work Plan Attachment 1.pdf
	[EXT] Rick Paul - Agenda & Work Program.pdf
	[EXT] Herminia Ramirez - Commissioner Work Plan.pdf
	[EXT] Stan Weiler - Planning Commission Work Plan.pdf
	[EXT] Ingrid Rainey Work Plan Recommendations.pdf
	Kate Barba 2021 Planning Commission Workplan.pdf

	Work Plan Attachment 2.pdf




